
 1

 
MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
TUESDAY, APRIL 5, 2016 

 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
4:30 P.M. – CLOSED SESSION – if needed  
  
5:30 P.M. – INVOCATION – Rev. Angela Davis, Mt. Olive AME Zion Church 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Sheriff Neil Godfrey 
 
CHAIRMAN – Does any Commissioner have a conflict of interest concerning agenda items the Board will 
address in this meeting? 
 

I. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD (Procedures are attached) 
 

II. ADDITIONAL AGENDA 
 
III. RECOGNITIONS 
 

A. Child Abuse Prevention Month (April Black) 
 

B. Public Health Month (Robert Wittmann) 
 

IV. PRESENTATIONS 
 

V. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 
All items listed below are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion.  No separate discussion will be 
held except on request of a member of the Board of Commissioners. 
 
A. Minutes: March 15, 2016 Regular Meeting 
B. Budget Amendments 

 
VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
A. Call to Public Hearing/Planning – Conditional Use District Rezoning Request: RA-40 to 

RA-CUD Use “Solar Collector Facility” (Debra Ensminger) 
 

VII. OLD BUSINESS 
 
 
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text



 2

VIII. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Information Technology – Approval for Internet Service Provider RFP Bid Rejection 
(Chris Butts) 

 
B. Information Technology – Approval of Sole Source and Contract for Globe 

Communications Fiber Installation (Chris Butts) 
 
C. Finance – General Obligation Refunding Bond (Ted Cole, Mitch Brigulio, Caroline 

Xiong) 
 

D. Public Works – Approval of Terry’s Plumbing Change Order #5 for 2013 Water Sources 
Project (Randy Gould) 

 
E. Public Works – Approval of Rural Center Grant Closeout for Midland Road Waterline 

Project (Randy Gould) 
 

F. Public Works – Approval of Contract for Interceptor Phase III Inspection and Cleaning 
Project (Randy Gould) 

 
G. Gov. Body – Consideration of Rescheduling of May 17, 2016 Regular Meeting 

(Chairman Picerno) 
 

IX. APPOINTMENTS 
 
A. Nursing and Adult Care Home Community Advisory Committee 
 
B. RSVP Advisory Council 

 
C. Board of Health 

 
X. ADDITIONAL AGENDA 
 
XI. MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
XII. COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 3

COMMISSIONERS’ UPCOMING MEETINGS/EVENTS: 
 

 RSVP Advisory Council, Thursday, April 7, 3:00pm (Daeke) 
 Airport Authority, Tuesday, April 12, 10:00am (Ritter) 
 Sandhills Center, Tuesday, April 12, 7:00pm (Ritter) 
 Pre-agenda, Wednesday, April 13, 9:00am (Ritter & Picerno) 
 Library Board, Wednesday, April 13, 3:30pm (Daeke) 
 Drug Free Moore County, Thursday, April 14, 8:30am (Ritter) 
 Facilities Work Session, Thursday, April 14, 8:30am 
 Regular Meeting, Tuesday, April 19, closed session 4:30pm, open 5:30pm 
 Moore Co. Transportation Comm., Wednesday, April 20, 2:00pm (Daeke) 
 DSS Board, Wednesday, April 20, 3:00pm (Graham) 
 Equalization & Review, Monday, April 25, 9:00am (Daeke) 
 Aging Advisory Council, Tuesday, April 26, 8:30am (Saunders) 
 Pre-agenda, Wednesday, April 27, 9:00am (Graham & Picerno) 
 Animal Operations, Thursday, April 28, 6:00pm (Picerno) 
 Regular Meeting, Tuesday, May 3, closed session 4:30pm, open 5:30pm 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 4

PUBLIC COMMENT PROCEDURES 
MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
The Moore County Board of Commissioners is committed to allowing members of the public an opportunity to offer comments and suggestions for 
the efficient and effective administration of government.  In addition to public hearings, a special time is set aside for the purpose of receiving such 
comments and suggestions.  All comments and suggestions addressed to the Board during the Public Comment Period shall be subject to the 
following procedures: 
 

1. The Public Comment period will be held at the beginning of the Board meeting.  The comment period will be limited to a maximum of 
thirty minutes. 

 
2. Persons who wish to address the Board during the Public Comment Period will register on a sign-up sheet available on the table 

outside the entrance door to the Commissioners’ Meeting Room indicating contact information and topic.  Sign-up sheets will be 
available beginning 30 minutes before the start of the meeting.  No one will be allowed to have his/her name placed on the list by 
telephone request to County Staff. 

 
3. Each person signed up to speak will have three (3) minutes to make his/her remarks.  Each person signed up to speak will only be 

entitled to the time allotted to each speaker and one additional time period which may be yielded to him/her by another individual who 
has also signed up to speak on a particular topic. 

 
4. Speakers will be acknowledged by the Board Chairperson in the order in which their names appear on the sign-up sheet.  Speakers 

will address the Board from the lectern at the front of the room and begin their remarks by stating their name and address. 
 

5. Public comment is not intended to require the Board to answer any impromptu questions.  However, Board members may, in their 
discretion and after being recognized by the Board Chairperson, respond to speakers’ comments.  Any response by a commissioner to 
a speaker during the public comment period does not open discussion between the commissioner and speaker.  Speakers will address 
all comments to the Board as a whole and not one individual commissioner.  Discussions between speakers and members of the 
audience will not be allowed. 

 
6. Speakers will be courteous in their language and presentation. Matters or comments which are harmful, discriminatory or 

embarrassing to any citizens, official or employee of Moore County shall not be allowed.  Speaker must be respectful and courteous in 
their remarks and must refrain from personal attacks and the use of profanity. 

 
7. Only one speaker will be acknowledged at a time.  If the time period runs out before all persons who have signed up get to speak, 

those names will be carried over to the next Public Comment Period. 
 

8. Any applause will be held until the end of the Public Comment Period. 
 

9. Speakers who have prepared written remarks or supporting documents are encouraged to leave a copy of such remarks and 
documents with the Clerk to the Board. 

 
10. Speakers shall not discuss any of the following:  matters which concern the candidacy of any person seeking public office, including 

the candidacy of the person addressing the Board; matters which are closed session matters, including but not limited to matters 
within the attorney-client privilege, anticipated or pending litigation, personnel, property acquisition, matters which are made 
confidential by law; matters which are the subject of public hearings. 

 
11. Information sheets outlining the process for the public’s participation in Board meetings will also be available in the rear of the 

Commissioner’s Meeting Room. 
 

12. Action on items brought up during the Public Comment Period will be at the discretion of the Board. 
  
Adopted on the 5th day of March 2007 by a 5 to 0 vote of the Moore County Board of Commissioners. 
 
Revised on the 7th day of April 2015. 

 



clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
III. A.





Agenda Item:   
       Meeting Date: 5 April 16  
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:    
     
FROM:             Robert R. Wittmann, Health Director 
   
DATE:              22 March 2016 
   
SUBJECT:       Public Health Month Proclamation  
 
PRESENTER: Robert R. Wittmann, Health Director 
 

REQUEST: The Moore County Health Department respectfully requests that the Moore                                
           County Board of Commissioners adopt a resolution proclaiming the month    
                       of April as “Public Health Month”. 
 

BACKGROUND: The Governor has proclaimed April as Public Health Month in North 
          Carolina.  The North Carolina Department of Health and Human 
                                Services encourages local counties to formally recognize the month 
                                and make use of the opportunity to increase North Carolinians’ 
                                awareness of the need for public health and its beneficial effect on 
                                quality of life. 
  
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: The Moore County Health Department will promote 
                                                     public health through outreach activities and public  
         health events held in April and throughout the year.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: None 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: Proclaim April as Public Health Month in 
                                                                 Moore County 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: The Governor of the State Of North Carolina’s  
                                                             2016 Public Health Month Proclamation 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
III. B.



 



Public Health Month 

2016 

By the Board of Commissioners of Moore County, North Carolina 

A Proclamation 

WHEREAS, public health measures to control and eliminate infectious diseases, improve environmental 

sanitation and promote healthy lifestyle practices have been the greatest cause of improved health status and increased 

life expectancy for Moore County’s residents, and 

WHEREAS, public health plays a critical role in eliminating health inequities and preventing chronic diseases and 

injuries, resulting in improved productivity and decreased health care costs for all North Carolinians; and 

WHEREAS, a continued focus on promoting public health programs that provide accessible, high‐quality medical 

care and that promote healthy lifestyles for women of childbearing years has resulted in a 17 percent decline in infant 

mortality since 2000; and 

WHEREAS, a continued focus on prevention has resulted in a 40 percent decline in age‐adjusted heart disease 

death rates since 2000, a 45 percent decline in age‐adjusted stroke death rates since 2000, and a 56 percent decline in 

birth rates for teens (ages 15‐19) since 2000; and 

WHEREAS, the State of North Carolina is committed to a continued emphasis on prevention in public health and 

on helping North Carolina reach a better state of health through actions outlined in the Healthy North Carolina 2020 

Objectives; and 

WHEREAS, the Healthy North Carolina 2020 health objectives represent a 10 year plan to improve the health of 

all North Carolinians by working to promote access to preventative and needed health services; foster positive and 

supportive living and working conditions in our communities; and support individuals in developing the capacities and 

skills to achieve healthy living; and 

WHEREAS, communities, employers, hospitals, and health care providers, individuals and families, insurers, 

legislators and policy makers, schools and child care facilities must work together to identify and develop innovative 

solutions to health problems facing the people of Moore County; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Commissioners of Moore County do hereby proclaim April 2016, as “PUBLIC 

HEALTH MONTH” in Moore County, North Carolina and recommend its observance to all citizens. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Seal of the County of Moore in Moore 

County, North Carolina this fifth day of April 2016. 

 
                                                                                             ________________________  
                                                                                             Nick Picerno 
                                                                                             Chairman                        
                                                                                                                                                                                               
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________ 
Laura M. Williams 
Clerk to the Board of Moore County Commissioners 



 1

 
MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
TUESDAY, MARCH 15, 2016 

 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
 
The Moore County Board of Commissioners met for a Regular Meeting at 5:30 p.m., Tuesday, 
March 15, 2016 in the Commissioners’ Meeting Room, Second Floor, Historic Courthouse in 
Carthage, North Carolina. 

 
Commissioners Present:  Chairman Nick Picerno, Vice Chairman Randy Saunders, Jerry 
Daeke, Catherine Graham, Otis Ritter 
      
Commissioners Absent:  None  
       
Chairman Picerno called the meeting to order.   
 
Reverend Michael Dubbs with Community Congregation Church provided the invocation and 
Department of Aging Director Terri Prots led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
The Chairman asked whether any commissioner had a conflict of interest concerning agenda 
items the Board would discuss during the meeting and no conflicts were stated. 
 
Chairman Picerno welcomed Boy Scout Troop 808 from Southern Pines, present to observe the 
meeting. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 
 
There were no speakers. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Upon motion made by Vice Chairman Saunders, seconded by Commissioner Ritter, the Board 
voted 5-0 to approve the following consent agenda items: 
 
Minutes: March 1, 2016 Regular Meeting 
Budget Amendments 
Tax Releases/Refunds – February 2016 
 
The budget amendments and tax releases/refunds resolutions are hereby incorporated as a part of 
these minutes by attachment as Appendices A and B, respectively. 

 
 
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.A.4/5/2016



 2

NEW BUSINESS 
 
Adoption of Revisions to Aging Advisory Council Bylaws  
 
Department of Aging Director Terri Prots requested the Board’s approval of amendments to the 
bylaws for the Aging Advisory Council, and she reviewed the changes, which were minor.  Upon 
motion made by Vice Chairman Saunders, seconded by Commissioner Graham, the Board voted 
5-0 to accept the recommended revisions to the Aging Advisory Council bylaws.  The amended 
bylaws are hereby incorporated as a part of these minutes by attachment as Appendix C. 

 
Approval of Vehicles Purchase  
 
Property Management Director Bobby Lake asked for the Board’s approval to purchase fourteen 
new vehicles at a cost of $379,286 from the fiscal year 2016 budget.  Vice Chairman Saunders 
made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to approve the purchase of the fourteen 
vehicles in the FY 15/16 budget by reallocating the savings from the previously approved vehicle 
purchases and allocating the needed balance from the FY 16 Property Management fuel line 
item.  Chairman Picerno and County Manager Wayne Vest discussed that this purchase would 
take care of what would be purchased in the next budget cycle.  Vice Chairman Saunders noted 
that the fuel savings in the current fiscal year had been tremendous.  The motion to approve the 
purchase carried 5-0. 

 
Approval of Amendment to Grace Paving Contract  
 
Public Works Director Randy Gould requested approval of an amendment to the paving contract 
with Grace Paving for an additional amount not to exceed $40,000.  Upon motion made by Vice 
Chairman Saunders, seconded by Commissioner Ritter, the Board voted 5-0 to award a paving 
contract amendment to Terry Patterson d/b/a as Grace Paving for an annual not to exceed amount 
of $40,000 and authorize the Chairman to sign. 

 
Approval to Return Funds to the NC Community Foundation, Inc.  
 
Social Services Director John Benton asked the Board to authorize the return of funds to the NC 
Community Foundation, Inc.  Commissioner Graham made a motion, seconded by 
Commissioner Daeke, to approve $100,000 be returned to the NC Community Foundation, Inc.  
Vice Chairman Saunders inquired regarding the inability to spend the funds and Mr. Benton 
indicated there were not enough qualifying recipients for the funds.  The motion to approve the 
return of the funds carried 5-0. 

 
Adoption of a Resolution Naming a New Fair Housing Officer for Moore County  
 
Planning Director Debra Ensminger asked the Board to adopt a resolution naming a new Fair 
Housing Officer for the County.  Upon motion made by Commissioner Daeke, seconded by 
Commissioner Ritter, the Board voted 5-0 to adopt the resolution and authorize the Chairman to 
sign the adopted resolution.  The resolution is hereby incorporated as a part of these minutes by 
attachment as Appendix D. 

 
 
 
 



 3

Adoption of a Resolution to Authorize Signatures on Documents Related to Moore County’s 
Housing Rehab Program  
 
Planning Director Debra Ensminger requested the Board’s adoption of a resolution to authorize 
signatures on documents related to the County’s housing rehab program.  Upon motion made by 
Commissioner Graham, seconded by Vice Chairman Saunders, the Board voted 5-0 to adopt the 
resolution authorizing the County Manager and designated staff and execute documents related 
to Moore County’s housing rehab programs.  The resolution is hereby incorporated as a part of 
these minutes by attachment as Appendix E. 
 

APPOINTMENTS 
 

Aging Advisory Council 
 
Upon motion made by Vice Chairman Saunders, seconded by Commissioner Graham, the Board 
voted 5-0 to appoint Loretta Jacobson to the Aging Advisory Council for a three-year term 
expiring March 31, 2019. 

 
Animal Operations Advisory Board Chair 
 
Upon motion made by Vice Chairman Saunders, seconded by Commissioner Graham, the Board 
voted 5-0 to appoint Chairman Picerno as the Chair of the Animal Operations Advisory Board. 

 
Board of Health 
 
Chairman Picerno made a motion, seconded by Vice Chairman Saunders, to appoint William 
Mang to the pharmacist position on the Board of Health for a three-year term expiring March 31, 
2019.  Chairman Picerno noted that Elise McInnis, who had served two terms on that board in 
the pharmacist position, had done a very good job.  The motion to appoint Mr. Mang carried 5-0. 

 
Nursing and Adult Care Home Community Advisory Committee 
 
Upon motion made by Commissioner Ritter, seconded by Commissioner Daeke, the Board voted 
5-0 to appoint Judie Luse, Barry Beeman, and Ruth Miller to the Nursing and Adult Care Home 
Community Advisory Committee for initial one-year terms expiring March 31, 2017. 

 
Whispering Pines Board of Adjustment ETJ 
 
Upon motion made by Vice Chairman Saunders, seconded by Commissioner Graham, the Board 
voted 5-0 to appoint Ronald Corrado to a three-year term as an ETJ member of the Whispering 
Pines Board of Adjustment. 
 

COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS 
 
Vice Chairman Saunders encouraged everyone to go vote.  (This was the day of the primary).  
He said the Boy Scouts picked the right night to be at the meeting (since it was short). 
 
Commissioner Graham thanked the Boy Scouts for being present and said they were the future. 
 
Chairman Picerno encouraged everyone to vote and said he hoped the Article 46 sales tax would 
pass.  He discussed additional local funding being requested from the Schools and encouraged 



 4

citizens to contact state representatives and urge them to fund the Schools at the level they said 
they would and quit pushing costs down on county governments.   
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business, upon motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by 
Commissioner Ritter, the Board voted 5-0 to adjourn the March 15, 2016 regular meeting of the 
Moore County Board of Commissioners at 5:45 p.m. 
 
             
       __________________________________ 
       Nick J. Picerno, Chairman 
 
_______________________________ 
Laura M. Williams, Clerk to the Board 
 



clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.B.







































































Sedberry Farm – Call To – Conditional Use District Rezoning – Staff Report  
 

Agenda Item: _____ 
Meeting Date: April 5, 2016   

 
MEMORANDUM TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
FROM:  Debra Ensminger 
   Planning & Transportation Director  
 
DATE:  March 4, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Call to Public Hearing for a Conditional Use District Rezoning 

Request: Residential and Agricultural-40 (RA-40) to Rural 
Agricultural – Conditional Use District (RA-CUD) use “Solar 
Collector Facility” 
 

PRESENTER:  Debra Ensminger 
 
 
REQUEST 
This is a request to call for a Public Hearing on April 19, 2016 for the following request: 
Sedberry Farm, LLC is requesting a Conditional Use District rezoning of ParID 00034424, 
00034425, 20060568, and 20060569 from Residential and Agricultural-40 (RA-40) to Rural 
Agricultural – Conditional Use District (RA-CUD) use “Solar Collector Facility.” The parcel is 
located on Airport Road.  
 
BACKGROUND 
The surrounding land uses include single family residential and agricultural. 

 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 
Call for a public hearing on April 19, 2016 at 5:30pm. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT  
No financial impact to the County’s FY 2015-2016 budget.   
 
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION 
The Planning Board met on March 3, 2016 and unanimously recommended approval. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY 
Make a motion to call for a public hearing on April 19, 2016 at 5:30pm to solicit public 
participation relative to the conditional use district rezoning request of ParID 00034424, 
00034425, 20060568, and 20060569 from Residential and Agricultural-40 (RA-40) to Rural 
Agricultural – Conditional Use District (RA-CUD) use “Solar Collector Facility.” 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS 

• Submitted Site Plan 
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VI.A.



NOTES

1. EXISTING PROPERTY INFORMATION

SITE ADDRESS:  399 AIRPORT ROAD, CARTHAGE, MOORE COUNTY, NC
RIVER BASIN:  CAPE FEAR
WATERSHED: WS-III, B; HQW
MINIMUM SETBACK REQUIREMENTS:

ZONING RA-40,   SOLAR COLLECTOR FACILITY
FRONT 40'          65'
SIDE 15'          50'
REAR 30'          50'

2. THE PURPOSE OF THIS PLAN IS FOR A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL BY  MOORE
COUNTY PLANNING BOARD TO CONSTRUCT A SOLAR ELECTRIC POWER PLANT. THE LOCATION OF PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS,
INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO:  FENCING, SOLAR ARRAY RACKING, INVERTERS, OVERHEAD POLES & LINES, ETC., SHOWN IS
APPROXIMATE AND MAY BE SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION DUE TO SITE CONDITIONS, ADDITIONAL PERMITTING REQUIREMENTS
(NCDOT, NCDEQ, USACOE, ETC.), EQUIPMENT SPECIFICATIONS, AND/OR OTHER CONSTRAINTS. ANY REVISIONS WILL BE
SUBMITTED FOR STAFF APPROVAL PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION TO VERIFY COMPLIANCE WITH ZONING REQUIREMENTS AND
CONDITIONS AS APPROVED.

3. TOPOGRAPHIC DATA & EXISTING IMPROVEMENTS SHOWN ON THIS PLAN IS PER AN ACTUAL FIELD SURVEY PERFORMED BY
GRAY SURVEYING CO., INC. DATED  FEBRUARY 15, 2016.

4. WATERS OF THE US SHOWN PER REPORT BY PILOT ENVIRONMENTAL INC. AND  FIELD LOCATED BY GRAY SURVEYING CO., INC.

5. THE PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON DOES NOT CONTAIN SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS (SFHAS) SUBJECT TO INUNDATION BY
THE 1% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD (I.E. 100-YR. EVENT) PER FEMA FIRM MAP PANEL NO. 3710950400J EFFECTIVE DATE 10/17/06.

6. ALL RIGHT-OF-WAYS ARE PUBLIC, UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.

7. UTILITY LINES AND SERVICES SHOWN HEREON ARE APPROXIMATE PER AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHY OR AS REPORTED BY VARIOUS
RESPONSIBLE PARTIES. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES ARE APPROXIMATE AND MUST BE FIELD VERIFIED. CALL NC
ONE CALL CENTER BEFORE DIGGING AT 811.

8. COPIES OF ALL PERMITS AND APPROVED PLANS MUST BE KEPT ON-SITE IN A PERMIT BOX THAT IS CONSPICUOUSLY LOCATED
AND EASILY ACCESSIBLE DURING CONSTRUCTION.

9. A SEDIMENT AND EROSION CONTROL PLAN WILL BE APPROVED BY NCDEQ-LQS PRIOR TO BEGINNING CONSTRUCTION.

10. A DRIVEWAY PERMIT WILL BE APPROVED BY NCDOT PRIOR TO BEGINNING CONSTRUCTION.

11. PROJECT AREA, INCLUDING CONSTRUCTION STAGING AREAS, WILL BE CLEARED AND GRUBBED AS NECESSARY, RETAINING
PRE-DEVELOPMENT DRAINAGE PATTERNS (I.E. NO MASS GRADING). A PORTION OF PROJECT AREAS MAY CONSIST OF TREE
CLEARING ONLY (NO GRUBBING) TO ALLEVIATE SHADING OF THE ARRAY, AS INDICATED ON THE SITE PLAN. MINOR GRADING
(APPROX. 545 SF) WILL OCCUR AROUND INVERTER AREAS TO DIVERT SURFACE DRAINAGE. CONSTRUCTION STAGING AND
AREAS SUBJECT TO RUTTING DURING CONSTRUCTION WILL BE TEMPORARILY STABILIZED WITH LOGGING MATS, WHICH WILL
BE REMOVED FOLLOWING CONSTRUCTION. THE ONLY PERMANENT IMPERVIOUS SURFACES WILL BE TWO CONCRETE SLABS,
TOTALING LESS THAN 100 SF AT EACH INVERTER & ONE 10'x10' CONCRETE PAD (TOTAL OF 100 SF) FOR SWITCHGEAR AND
METERING EQUIPMENT.

12. PROPOSED TEMPORARY LAYDOWN YARD/CONSTRUCTION STAGING AREA TO BE USED DURING SITE CONSTRUCTION. A
PORTION OF THIS AREA (HATCHED) WILL  BE COVERED WITH LOGGING MATS TO ALLOW DELIVERY OF CONSTRUCTION
MATERIALS. PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION, THIS AREA WILL BE COMPACTED BY A SMOOTH DRUM ROLLER TO REDUCE/PREVENT
RUTTING. FOLLOWING CONSTRUCTION, THE LOGGING MATS ARE REMOVED AND THE ENTIRE AREA IS RESTORED TO
PRE-CONSTRUCTION CONDITIONS.

13. ACCESS AISLES ARE COMPACTED BY A SMOOTH DRUM ROLLER TO REDUCE/PREVENT RUTTING. LOGGING MATS MAY BE
PLACED IN HIGH TRAFFIC OR POORLY DRAINING AREAS DURING CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES TO IMPROVE ACCESS. NO
PERMANENT IMPROVEMENTS OR IMPERVIOUS SURFACES (I.E. GRAVEL OR ASPHALT) WILL BE INSTALLED IN ACCESS AISLES
FOR CONSTRUCTION OR MAINTENANCE ACTIVITIES.

14. PROPOSED 24' ACCESS GATE (TWO 12' SECTIONS) IS 6' TALL CHAIN LINK WITH 3 STRANDS OF BARBED WIRE. GATE WILL BE
LOCKED WITH STANDARD KEYED OR COMBINATION LOCK. EMERGENCY PERSONNEL (AS DESIGNATED BY MOORE COUNTY)
WILL BE PROVIDED A KEY OR COMBINATION FOR ACCESS.

15. NO LIGHTING IS PROPOSED FOR THIS SITE.

16. ALUMINUM SIGNS ("DANGER - HIGH VOLTAGE" AND "DANGER - NO TRESPASSING") MEASURING 14" X 10" IN SIZE, WILL BE
PLACED ON PERMANENT SECURITY FENCING, ALTERNATING EVERY 100' AROUND THE ARRAY.

17. NOISE LEVELS MEASURED AT THE PROPERTY LINE WILL NOT EXCEED FIFTY (50) DECIBELS WHEN LOCATED ADJACENT TO AN
EXISTING RESIDENCE OR RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT.

18. TWO PARKING SPACES (MIN. 9'x18') HAVE BEEN PROVIDED FOR MAINTENANCE/SERVICE ACTIVITY.  THESE SPACES WILL ONLY
BE UTILIZED FOR SERVICE PARKING.  THERE WILL NOT BE ANY PERMANENT ON-SITE EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATED WITH THIS
PROJECT.

19. THE PHOTOVOLTAIC (PV) PANELS ARE LOCATED AND SITUATED SO GLARE DOES NOT CREATE A DISTRACTION OR NUISANCE
TO TRAFFIC OR ADJACENT RESIDENTIAL PROPERTIES.

20. SOLAR COMPONENTS WILL HAVE A UL LISTING AND DESIGNED WITH ANTI-REFLECTIVE COATING.

21. ALL CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE NATIONAL ELECTRIC CODE AND NORTH CAROLINA BUILDING CODE.

17. NO STRUCTURE SHALL EXCEED A HEIGHT GREATER THAN 25 FEET,EXCEPT FOR EXISTING POLES AND OVERHEAD WIRING.
THIS IS MEASURED FROM FINISHED GRADE AT THE BASE OF THE STRUCTURE TO ITS HIGHEST POINT.

18. ALL PROPOSED POWER TRANSMISSION LINES FROM THE GROUND MOUNTED SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEM WILL BE LOCATED
UNDERGROUND EXCEPT INTERCONNECTION POLES AND GROUND MOUNTED SWITCHGEAR.

18. ALL INVERTERS WILL BE LOCATED A MIN. OF 150' FROM ANY PROPERTY LINE OR PUBLIC ROW.

19. NO DEED RESTRICTIONS OR COVENANTS APPLY TO THESE PARCELS.

20. THE APPLICANT AGREES TO REMOVE ALL TEMPORARY ITEMS SHOWN ON THE PLAN AND TO REHABILITATE THESE AREAS TO
THE CONDITION AS INTENDED FOR THE OPERATION OF THE PROPOSED USE WITHIN 30 DAYS OF THE ISSUANCE OF THE
CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCEY OR WITHIN 180 DAYS OF THE ISSUANCE OF A  BUILDING PERMIT, WHICHEVER IS LESS.

C2.1

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND
MEDIUM VOLTAGE LINE (TYP)

PROPOSED TEMPORARY LAYDOWN YARD & CONSTRUCTION STAGING
AREA. USE TEMPORARY LOGGING MATS (HATCHING) IN
CONSTRUCTION STAGING AREA DURING SITE CONSTRUCTION.

SCALE:  1" =        '

0100 100 200

100

CURRENT OR
PREVIOUS PIN OWNER RECOMBINATION

DB/PG

PARCEL
ACREAGE

(APPROXIMATE)

LEASED
ACREAGE

(APPROXIMATE)

950400430850 MARY ELIZABETH SEDBERRY 4579/279 16.681 16.681

950400429878 MARY ELIZABETH SEDBERRY 4579/279 11.266 11.266

950400433991 MARY ELIZABETH SEDBERRY 4579/279 1.129 1.129

950400436788 MARY ELIZABETH SEDBERRY 4579/279 2.303 2.303

TOTAL ACREAGE 31.38 31.38 PERMANENT SECURITY FENCE
(6' CHAIN-LINK WITH 3 STRANDS BARBED WIRE)

TEMPORARY SECURITY FENCE
(6' CHAIN-LINK)

EXISTING TREE LINE

PROPOSED TREE LINE

PROPOSED OVERHEAD MEDIUM
VOLTAGE LINE

EXISTING OVERHEAD POWER LINE

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND
MEDIUM VOLTAGE LINE

EXISTING FENCE LINE

EXISTING RIGHT-OF-WAY

PROPOSED LEASE LINE

EXISTING PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING SETBACK

EXISTING UTILITY POLE

PROPOSED UTILITY POLE (BY STRATA)

PROPOSED UTILITY POLE (BY OTHERS)

PROPOSED GUY WIRE

PROPOSED SOLAR ARRAY

PROPOSED INVERTER AREA

SITE PLAN LEGEND

EXISTING PROPERTY LINE
(NOT SURVEYED)

PROPOSED POINT OF
INTERCONNECTION

PROPOSED 24' WIDE TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION
ENTRANCE AND PERMANENT SITE ACCESS W/ 25'
RADII. DURING CONSTRUCTION, ENTRANCE WILL BE
GRAVEL PER NCDEQ-LQ REQUIREMENTS. FOLLOWING
CONSTRUCTION, ENTRANCE WILL BE CONSTRUCTED
PER APPROVED NCDOT DRIVEWAY PERMIT.

PROPOSED 24'
PERMANENT
GATE

TEMPORARY 24' ACCESS GATE

TEMPORARY
CONSTRUCTION PARKING

AREA RESERVED FOR

POTENTIAL SEDIM
ENT

BASIN

EXISTING STRUCTURES
TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING STRUCTURE TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING STRUCTURES TO
BE REMOVED

VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

REVISIONDRAWING NO.

SIZE:

PROJ NO:

SCALE: 1" - 100'

DFTR: RBJ

CHKD: JMH

ENGR: BTN

A

C-345-14-SED

REV DATE APPCHKBYREVISION DESCRIPTION

THIS DRAWING IS PROTECTED
BY COPYRIGHT.  THIS

DOCUMENT IS THE SOLE
PROPERTY OF STRATA SOLAR,

LLC.  ANY USE, REPRODUCTION,
DISTRIBUTION, PUBLICATION,

OR PRESENTATION IS BY
EXPRESS PERMISSION OF

STRATA SOLAR LLC.

DO NOT SCALE DRAWINGS.
USE FIGURED DIMENSIONS

ONLY.

 © 2016 STRATA SOLAR, LLC.

www.stratasolar.com
919-960-6015

Chapel Hill, NC 27517

50101 Governors Drive

NC License No.: D-0298

Suite 280

399 AIRPORT RD.
CARTHAGE, NC 28327

McNEILL TWP
MOORE COUNTY

SEAL

PROJECT NAME AND ADDRESS

24.0" x 36.0"

DRAWING DESCRIPTION2/23/2016

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

3 4 5 6 7 8 9

B

C

D

E

F

A

B

C

D

E

F

21

1

SEDBERRY SOLAR PROJECT

1 2/04/16 JMHRBJTemp exit drive, Screen note

2 2/09/16 JMHRBJRevised per Moore Co comments, Wetland Rev.

CHK

CHK

3 3/11/16 JMHRBJHome structure note, added buffer detail CHK

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

THE SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE WILL BE REMOVED WITH THE EXCEPTION OF THE BRICK
FOUNDATION AND CHIMNEY.  THE SUBCONTRACTOR WILL REMOVE PORTIONS OF THE
CHIMNEY AS NEEDED TO PREVENT UNSAFE CONDITIONS.  THIS WORK WILL BE COMPLETED
PRIOR TO THE ISSUANCE OF A CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY TO THE APPLICANT FOR THE
OPERATION OF A SOLAR COLLECTOR FACILITY ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY

52'

EXISTING SOIL DRIVE TO BE USED ONLY AS
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE FOR
DELIVERY EXIT AND  AND TEMPORARY
CONSTRUCTION PARKING .  IMPROVE AS
NECESSARY PER NCDEQ-LQ REQUIREMENTS.

PROPOSED 10'x70'
SIGHT TRIANGLES

PROPOSED PAD MOUNTED SWITCH GEAR
(INCLUDING ELECTRICAL DISCONNECT
SWITCH) BY STRATA SOLAR FOR
INTERCONNECTION PACKAGE.  THE
ELECTRICAL DISCONNECT SWITCH SHALL BE
CLEARLY IDENTIFIED & REMAIN
UNOBSTRUCTED AT ALL TIMES.

PROPOSED 20' SOIL ACCESS ROAD WITH 120' HAMMERHEAD TURNAROUND
FOR FIRE TRUCK ACCESS
(SEE DETAIL THIS SHEET)

PROPOSED  25' MODIFIED TYPE 2 BUFFER YARD.
EVERGREEN TREES:  ILEX 'NELLIE R. STEVENS'

SEE DETAIL THIS SHEET
APPROXIMATELY 1400 LF

PROPOSED 20' SOIL
ACCESS PATH FOR
FIRE TRUCK (TYP.)

AREA RESERVED FOR POTENTIAL
SEDIMENT BASIN

GALVANIZED WIRE
MESH (TYP)

3 STRANDS OF
BARBED WIRE

CONCRETE FOOTING

6" 6"

TYPICAL SECURITY FENCE 6' CHAINLINK
WITH 3 STRANDS BARBED WIRE

AREA RESERVED FOR POTENTIAL
SEDIMENT BASIN

EXISTING VEGETATION SHALL REMAIN
MINIMUM 25' WIDE (HATCHED AREA).
SUPPLIMENTAL PLANTING MAY BE
PROVIDED AS NECESSARY TO SATISFY
SECTION 8.2.203 TYPE 3 SCREENING
REQUIREMENTS (TYP.)

(2) 9' x 18' PERMANENT
PARKING SPACES

PROPOSED  25' MODIFIED
TYPE 2 BUFFER YARD.

SEE DETAIL THIS SHEET
APPROXIMATELY 400LF

33/11/2016

EXISTING PROPERTY LINES  TO BE
REMOVED BY RECOMBINATION

PLAT 13/422 PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF
BUILDING PERMIT

PROPOSED
25' MODIFIED TYPE 2 BUFFER YARD.
EVERGREEN TREES: THUJA 'GREEN GIANT'
SEE DETAIL THIS SHEET
APPROXIMATELY 125 LF

PROPOSED 25' MODIFIED TYPE 2 BUFFER YARD.
EVERGREEN TREES: THUJA 'GREEN GIANT'
SEE DETAIL THIS SHEET
APPROXIMATELY 110 LF

TEMPORARY 24' ACCESS GATE

EXISTING STRUCTURE
TO BE REMOVED

LEASE LINE IS COINCIDENT WITH
PROPERTY LINE.

REMOVE EXISTING UTILITY POLE AS NECESSARY

77'

35'

32'

35'

57'

10
0'13
4'

PROPOSED 25' MODIFIED TYPE 2 BUFFER YARD.
EVERGREEN TREES: THUJA 'GREEN GIANT'
SEE DETAIL THIS SHEET
APPROXIMATELY 400 LF

CONTRACTOR SHALL REMOVE
EXISTING WELL IN ACCORDANCE
WITH MOORE COUNTY REGULATIONS
(TYP.)

72
'

25
' L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 B
U

FF
E

R

MODIFIED TYPE 2 BUFFER
NOT TO SCALE

PROPOSED SECURITY FENCE 6'
CHAIN-LINK WITH 3 STRANDS
BARBED WIRE (TYP)  OR
SCREENING BOUNDARY

EVERGREEN
TREES

AIRPORT RD. BUFFER
NOTES:
1. PLANTING AREA WILL BE 25' WIDE
2. BUFFER YARD SHALL CONSIST OF 16 EVERGREEN TREES PER 100' LINEAR FT.
3. EVERGREEN TREES SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 5' IN HEIGHT AT TIME OF

PLANTING.
4. EVERGREEN TREES:  THUJA 'GREEN GIANT'    (GREEN GIANT ARBORVITAE)

REMAINING PERIMETER BUFFER
NOTES:
1. PLANTING AREA WILL BE 25' WIDE
2. BUFFER YARD SHALL CONSIST OF 16 EVERGREEN TREES PER 100' LINEAR FT.
3. EVERGREEN TREES SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 5' IN HEIGHT AT TIME OF

PLANTING.
4. EVERGREEN TREES:  ILEX 'NELLIE R. STEVENS'   (NELLIE STEVENS HOLLY)

6'
 O

.C
.

12' O.C.

Z:
\_

PR
O

JE
C

TS
\S

ed
be

rry
 (3

45
-1

4)
\3

. C
A

D
\C

-3
45

-1
4-

SE
D

_B
-C

IV
IL

.d
w

g,
 3

/1
1/

20
16

 1
0:

40
:2

9 
A

M
, r

jo
hn

so
n,

 1
:1



 Agenda Item:         
        Meeting Date:  April 5, 2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM:  Chris Butts, Information Technology Director    
 
DATE:  April 6, 2016   
 
SUBJECT: Internet Service Provider RFP Bid Rejection  
 
PRESENTER: Chris Butts 
 
 
REQUEST: 
Reject bids for the Internet Service Provider RFP.     
 
BACKGROUND: 
Moore County had received bids for an internet service provider (ISP) to provide the county with 
internet and a network connection from the Rick Rhyne Public Safety building to the Public Works 
and Parks and Recreation buildings. After receiving the bids, the county decided it could reduce cost 
by installing county owned fiber to provide a network connection between the Rick Rhyne and Public 
Works and Parks and Recreation buildings. Quotes will still be obtained for internet service and IP 
addresses. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
NA 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
NA 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
Staff recommends the board to reject the bids received for RFP# 2016-07 for Internet Service 
Provider.     
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
NA 
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII. A.



 Agenda Item:         
        Meeting Date:  April 5, 2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM:  Chris Butts, Information Technology Director    
 
DATE:  April 6, 2016   
 
SUBJECT: Sole Source – Globe Communications  
 
PRESENTER: Chris Butts 
 
 
REQUEST: 
Approve Globe Communications as a sole source for fiber installation and approve the contract.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Globe Communications is the only vendor that has installed all existing county fiber infrastructure 
and therefore is aware of where existing lines are located. It would take another company significant 
amount of time and county staff time to determine where existing lines are located and research other 
fiber connection related information. If a county fiber line were to be cut, Globe Communications 
would also be able to more quickly fix the issue with their knowledge of the infrastructure. For these 
reasons, Globe Communications should be considered a sole source for the fiber installation work. 
 
The fiber network line will run from the Rick Rhyne Public Safety building to the Public Works, 
Animal Operations and Parks and Recreation facilities. This fiber line will increase the network 
speeds for these facilities. Currently these facilities are connected to the county network fiber through 
an internet service provider (ISP). The current connection is 100mb for Public Works and Animal 
Operations and a 50mb connection at Parks and Recreation. Staff is recommending increasing these 
connection speeds to 1Gbps so these facilities would run at the same speed as the rest of the county 
network. The ISP connection service could be removed if the contract is approved to build the county 
fiber to the above facilities and therefore be a cost savings to the county. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
If the contract is approved the fiber would be installed by the vendor and these facilities would then 
be connected to the rest of the county and datacenter through county owned fiber. The IT department 
will be acquiring quotes for internet costs only. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
This year the county paid $49,728 for county internet, 100mb connection at Public Works and 
Animal Operations and a 50mb connection at Parks and Recreation. Next fiscal year this cost would 
increase to $62,222 per year for county internet, and a 1Gbps connection to Public Works, Animal 
Operations and Parks and Recreation. Constructing the fiber line will cost $89,850 and is a one-time 
cost. The county would still need an internet service provider to provide 100mb internet.   

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII. B.



 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
Staff recommends the board approve the sole source documentation for Globe Communications. Staff 
recommends the board to make a motion authorizing the Chairman to execute the attached contract 
with Globe Communications.     
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
Sole Source Justification Form 
Globe Communications Contract 
 







FN 16-0148 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 

 

COUNTY OF MOORE 

 
 
This Contract is entered into the 5th day of April, 2016, between the County of Moore, a political 

subdivision of the State of North Carolina (the “County”), and Globe Communications, LLC, a 
limited liability company formed under the laws of the State of North Carolina (the “Contractor”). 

 
1. Services to be Provided and Agreed Charges 

 
The Contractor agrees to provide services and materials (collectively referred to as “Services”) 

contained in this Contract pursuant to the provisions and specifications identified in Attachment 1, 
which is incorporated by reference in this Contract.  Pursuant to Section 3 of this Contract, the 
County agrees to pay for Services contained in Attachment 1. 
 

2. Term of Contract 

 
The term of this Contract is from April 5, 2016, through August 31, 2016. 
 
This Contract is subject to the availability of funds to purchase the specified Services and may be 

terminated at any time during the term upon thirty (30) days notice if such funds become unavailable. 
 

3. Payment to Contractor 

 
The Contractor will receive from the County an amount not to exceed $89,850.00 as full 

compensation for the provision of Services as provided herein.  The County agrees to pay at the rates 
specified for Services, satisfactorily performed or provided, in accordance with this Contract.  Unless 
otherwise specified, the Contractor will submit an itemized invoice to the County by the end of the 
month during which Services are performed or provided.  Payment will be processed promptly upon 
receipt and approval of the invoice by the County. 

 
4. Independent Contractor 

 
The County and Contractor agree that the Contractor is an independent contractor and will not 

represent itself as an agent or employee of the County for any purpose in the performance of the 
Contractor’s duties under this Contract.  Accordingly, the Contractor will be responsible for payment 
of all federal, state and local taxes as well as business license fees arising out of the Contractor’s 
activities in accordance with this Contract.  For purposes of this Contract taxes will include, but not 
be limited to, Federal and State Income, Social Security and Unemployment Insurance taxes. 

 
The Contractor, as an independent contractor, will perform all services in a professional manner 

and in accordance with the standards of applicable professional organizations and licensing agencies. 
 

5. Insurance 

 
The Contractor will maintain Workers’ Compensation Insurance for all of the Contractor’s 

employees.  The Workers’ Compensation Insurance will be in the amounts prescribed by the laws of 
the State of North Carolina. 



 

FN 16-0148 Page 2 of 6 

 
The Contractor will maintain, at its expense, the following minimum insurance coverage: 
 

 Bodily Injury $1,000,000.00 per occurrence 
 Property Damage $100,000.00 per occurrence 
 Bodily Injury/Property Damage $1,000,000.00 combined single limit per occurrence 
 

Professional liability insurance will be required whenever the Contractor is required to be 
certified, licensed, or registered by a regulatory entity or where the Contractor’s error in judgment, 
planning, design, or etc. could result in economic loss to the County.  If professional liability 
insurance is required, the coverage must provide for no less than $1,000,000.00 combined single 
limit per occurrence. 

 
The Contractor agrees to furnish the County proof of compliance with the insurance coverage 

requirements of this Contract upon request.  The Contractor, upon request by the County, will furnish 
a certificate of insurance from an insurance company, licensed to do business in the State of North 
Carolina and acceptable to the County, verifying the existence of the insurance coverage required by 
the County.  The certificate will provide for sixty (60) days advance notice in the event of 
termination or cancellation of coverage. 

 
6. Indemnification 

 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor will indemnify and hold harmless the 

County, its officials, agents, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and 
expenses, direct, indirect, or consequential (including but not limited to fees and charges of engineers 
or architects, attorneys, and other professionals and costs related to court action or arbitration) arising 
out of or resulting from the performance of this Contract or the actions of the Contractor, its officials, 
employees, or contractors under this Contract or under the contracts entered into by the Contractor in 
connection with this Contract.  This indemnification will survive the termination of this Contract. 

 
7. Health and Safety 

 
The Contractor will be responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all safety 

precautions and programs required by OSHA and all other regulatory agencies while providing 
Services under this Contract. 

 
8. E-Verify 

 
Pursuant to North Carolina General Statute § 143-133.3, E-verify Compliance, the County may 

not enter into a contract unless the contractor, and the contractor’s subcontractors under the contract, 
comply with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the General Statutes.  The Contractor 
represents and warrants that it is in compliance with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of 
the General Statutes.  Further, the Contractor warrants that any subcontractors used by the Contractor 
will be in compliance with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the General Statutes. 

 

9. Iran Divestment Act Certification 

 

Seller certifies that: (i) Seller is not listed on the Final Divestment List created by the State 
Treasurer pursuant to N.C.G.S. § 143C-6A-4 (the “Final Divestment List”), and (ii) Seller will not 



 

FN 16-0148 Page 3 of 6 

utilize any subcontractor performing work under this Purchase Order which is listed on the Final 
Divestment List. The Final Divestment List can be found on the State Treasurer’s website at the 
address www.nctreasurer.com/Iran and should be updated every 180 days. 

 
10. Non-Discrimination in Employment 

 
The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because 

of age, sex, race, creed, national origin, or disability. In the event the Contractor is determined by the 
final order of an appropriate agency or court to be in violation of this provision or any non-
discrimination provision of federal, state or local law, this Contract may be suspended or terminated, 
in whole or in part, by the County.  In addition, the Contractor may be declared ineligible for further 
contracts with the County. 

 
11. Governing Law 

 
The validity of this Contract and any of its terms or provisions, as well as the rights and duties of 

the parties to this Contract, are governed by the laws of the State of North Carolina.  All actions 
relating to this Contract in any way will be brought in the General Courts of Justice in the County of 
Moore and the State of North Carolina. 

 
12. Termination of Agreement 

 
This Contract may be terminated, without cause, by either party upon thirty (30) days written 

notice to the other party.  This termination notice period will begin upon receipt of the notice of 
termination.  Such a termination does not bar either party from pursuing a claim for damages for 
breach of the Contract. 

 
This Contract may be terminated, for cause, by the non-breaching party notifying the breaching 

party of a substantial failure to perform in accordance with the provisions of this Contract and if the 
failure is not corrected within ten (10) days of the receipt of the notification. Upon such termination, 
the parties will be entitled to such additional rights and remedies as permitted by law. 

 
Termination of this Contract, either with or without cause, will not form the basis of any claim 

for loss of anticipated profits by either party. 
 

13. Successors and Assigns 

 
The Contractor will not assign its interest in this Contract without the written consent of the 

County.  The Contractor has no authority to enter into contracts on behalf of the County. 
 

14. Compliance with Laws 

 
The Contractor represents that it is in compliance with all Federal, State, and local laws, 

regulations or orders, as amended or supplemented.  The implementation of this Contract will be 
carried out in strict compliance with all Federal, State, or local laws regarding discrimination in 
employment. 

 

http://www.nctreasurer.com/Iran


 

FN 16-0148 Page 4 of 6 

15. Notices 

 
All notices which may be required by this Contract or any rule of law will be effective when 

received by certified mail sent to the following addresses: 
 

COUNTY OF MOORE: MOORE COUNTY IT 
 ATTN:  CHRIS BUTTS, DIRECTOR 
 P.O. BOX 905 
 CARTHAGE, NC  28327    
 
CONTRACTOR: GLOBE COMMUNICATIONS, LLC 

ATTN:  DAVID REID 
5112 NEAL ROAD 
DURHAM, NC  27705 

 
16. Audit Rights 

 
For all Services being provided under this Contract, the County has the right to inspect, examine, 

and make copies of any and all books, accounts, invoices, records and other writings relating to the 
performance of those Services.  Audits will take place at times and locations mutually agreed upon 
by both parties.  The Contractor must make the materials to be audited available within one (1) week 
of the request for them. 

 
17. County Not Responsible for Expenses 

 
The County will not be liable to the Contractor for any expenses paid or incurred by the 

Contractor unless otherwise agreed in writing. 
 

18. Equipment 

 
The Contractor will supply, at its sole expense, all equipment, tools, materials, and supplies 

required to provide contracted Services unless otherwise agreed in writing. 
 

19. Priority of Documents 

 
In the event of any inconsistency between the Contract and any attachment to the Contract, the 

Contract will have priority. 
 

20. Severability 

 

If any provision of this Agreement shall be determined to be unenforceable by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, such determination will not affect any other provision of this Agreement. 

 

21. Non-Waiver 

 
The failure by one party to require performance of any provision of this Contract will not affect 

that party's right to require performance at any time thereafter or to enforce other remedies available 
to it by law or under this Contract.  In addition, no waiver of any breach or default of this Contract 
will constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach or default or a waiver of the provision itself. 



 

FN 16-0148 Page 5 of 6 

 
22. Entire Agreement 

 
This Contract and Attachment 1 constitute the entire understanding between the parties and 

supersedes all prior understandings and agreements, whether oral or written, relating to the subject 
matter hereof. 

 
23. Amendment 

 
This Contract may only be amended by the written mutual agreement of the parties. 
 

24. Drafted by Both Parties 

 
This Contract is deemed to have been drafted by both parties and no interpretation will be made 

to the contrary. 
 

25. Headings 

 
Subject headings are for convenience only and will not affect the construction or interpretation of 

any provision. 
 
 
The parties have expressed their agreement to these terms by causing this Contract to be executed 

by their duly authorized officers or agents.  This Contract is effective as of the date first written 
above. 
 
 
COUNTY OF MOORE  CONTRACTOR 

 
 
    
Nick J. Picerno, Chairman  By:   
Moore County Board of Commissioners  Title:   
 
Attest:  Attest: 

 

 

    
Laura M. Williams  By:   
Clerk to the Board  Title:   
 
PREAUDIT CERTIFICATE 

This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and 
Fiscal Control Act. 
 

 

  
Finance Officer 



ATTACHMENT 1 

FN 16-0148 Page 6 of 6 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
 

A. The Contractor will provide all labor, materials, and equipment necessary to aerially install 
one 72 strand singlemode fiber between the data room located at the Rick Rhyne Public 
Safety and Detention Center, the County’s Public Works facilities, and the County’s facilities 
located at Hillcrest Park.  Contractor will also provide all engineering, permitting, splicing, 
and testing to ensure the functionality of the fiber. 

 
The Contractor will install six strand laterals from the mainline to the Public Works facilities 
and to the County’s facilities located at Hillcrest Park.  All strands will terminate at the Rick 
Rhyne Public Safety and Detention Center. 

 
B. All Services will be performed to the satisfaction of the County. 



  Agenda Item: 
         Meeting Date: 04/05/16 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM: Caroline L. Xiong, Chief Finance Officer  
 
DATE:             March 28th, 2016   
 
SUBJECT: General Obligation Refunding Bond  
 
PRESENTER:  Ted Cole / Mitch Brigulio/ Caroline L. Xiong 
 
REQUEST: 
 
Request the Board of commmissioners to proceed with: 
 

1. Adoption of a resolution to file an application with the LGC for approval of the issuance of 
the refunding bond, and to make certain preliminary findings. 

2. Introduction and adoption of the Bond Order. 
3. Acknowledgement of the Filing of the Sworn Statement of Debt. 
4. Acknowledgement of the Filing of the Statement of Estimated Interest. 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
All general obligation bonds serviced by the County’s General Funds are collateralized by the full 
faith, credit, and taxing power of the County.  On May 28th, 2008, Moore County issued $40,000,000 
of general obligation bonds and on May 5th, 2009, Moore County issued $29,500,000 of general 
obligation bonds for Moore County Schools and Sandhills Community College’s facility expansion, 
renovation and other capital improvements.  If the Board authorizes the issuance of General 
Obligation Refunding Bonds refunding the County’s 2008 Public Improvement Bonds maturing June 
1, 2019 through 2028 and Series 2009A Public Improvement Bonds maturing June 1, 2020 through 
2029, then there will be potential debt service savings.  
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
 
Once the proceedings have been adopted by the Board of Commissioners, this should permit the 
County to proceed to the final transaction. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
 
Refunding the 2019-2028 Bonds for Series 2008 and refunding the 2020-2029 Bonds for Series 
2009A will lead to potential debt service savings for Moore County.    
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 

1. Adoption of a resolution to file an application with the LGC for approval of the issuance of 
the refunding bond, and to make certain preliminary findings. 

2. Introduction and adoption of the Bond Order. 
3. Acknowledgement of the Filing of the Sworn Statement of Debt. 
4. Acknowledgement of the Filing of the Statement of Estimated Interest. 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII. C.



 

 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
 
2016 General Obligation Refunding RFP Summary 
Resolution to file an application with the LGC for approval of the issuance of the refunding bond and 
Bond Order 
Sworn Statement of Debt 
Statement of Estimated Interest 
 



 

 
Member NYSE | FINRA | SIPC Page 1 

To Moore County, NC 

From Davenport & Company LLC 

Date April 5, 2016 

Subject 2016 General Obligation Refunding Bond RFP Summary 

 

Background 

Davenport & Company LLC (“Davenport”) assisted Moore County, NC (the “County”), in the distribution of a 

Request for Proposals (“RFP”) to secure a bank commitment for the purchase of a General Obligation 

Refunding Bond, Series 2016 (“2016 GO Refunding Bond”) to advance refund all or a portion of the County’s 

callable General Obligation Public Improvement Bonds, Series 2008 (“2008 GOs”), all or a portion of the 

County’s callable General Obligation Public Improvement Bonds, Series 2009A (“2009A GOs”) and fund the 

associated Costs of Issuance. The RFP was distributed to over 35 National, Regional, and Local lending 

institutions.   

 

As part of the RFP process, responding institutions were asked to provide proposals for two options as 

described below: 

 

- Option A:  General Obligation Refunding Bond, Series 2016 in the approximate amount of 

$29,409,000 to advance refund all or a portion of the County’s 2008 GOs with a final maturity of June 

1, 2028. 

 

- Option B: General Obligation Refunding Bond, Series 2016 in the approximate amount of 

$50,485,000 to advance refund all or a portion of the County’s callable 2008 GOs and 2009A GOs 

with a final maturity of June 1, 2029. 

 

RFP Responses 

Through this process, the County was able to secure four responses to the RFP, including:   

 

1. Capital One Public Funding (“Capital One”);  

2. Key Government Finance (“Key”); 

3. Pinnacle Public Finance (“Pinnacle”);and 

4. Raymond James (“Raymond James”). 

 

  

Davenport Public Finance 
 

Independence Center 

101 N. Tryon Street Ste. 1220 

Charlotte, NC 28246 



 
 
2016 General Obligation Refunding Bond RFP Summary 

April 5, 2016 

 

 
Member NYSE | FINRA | SIPC Page 2 

Public Market Sale 

 

As an alternative to refinancing the 2008 GOs and 2009 GOs with one of the proposing banks, the County 

could consider a public sale of General Obligation Refunding Bonds. In order to effect the public sale 

refunding, the County would need to prepare formal offering documents (Official Statement and Notice of Sale) 

and obtain credit ratings. The process to complete a public sale would take approximately 75 days. During this 

time period, the County would be subject to daily interest rate changes until rates could be locked in around 

day 60 of the process. 

 
 

The following pages contain a summary of the key terms and conditions for each of the responses received. 

 

Discussion Points 

1. Interest Rate  
 

While all four banks submitted proposals consistent with the RFP specifications, Raymond James offered the 

lowest Option A interest rate and Key offered the lowest Option B Interest Rate, as shown in Table 1 below. 

The rates offered by all of the proposers are fixed through the final maturity of the loan and, with the exception 

of Pinnacle and Capital One, will be held firm for a closing on or about May 20th. 
 

Table 1: Summary of Interest Rates 

Bank 
Interest Rate Final Maturity 

Rates Held Firm Through 
Option A Option B Option A Option B 

Key 2.30% 2.18% 6/1/28 6/1/29 May 20th 

Raymond James 2.16% 2.29% 6/1/28 6/1/29 May 20th 

Pinnacle 2.32% 2.38% 6/1/28 6/1/29 May 16th 

Capital One 2.64% 2.74% 6/1/28 6/1/29 May 16th 

Estimated Current 

Market Public Sale 
1.96%* 2.05%* 6/1/28 6/1/29 

Subject to Market Movement for 

Approximately 60 days 

* Estimated True Interest Cost of Public Sale. Preliminary and subject to change for approximately 60 days until final pricing. 

  



 
 
2016 General Obligation Refunding Bond RFP Summary 

April 5, 2016 

 

 
Member NYSE | FINRA | SIPC Page 3 

2. Prepayment Provisions 
 

Prepayment provisions offered in the proposals are shown in Table 2 below. 
 

Table 2: Summary of Prepayment Provisions 

Bank Prepayment Provisions 

Key 
In whole at any time at: Year 1: No Call; Year 2: 101.00%; Year 3: 

100.75%; Year 4: 100.50%; Year 5: 100.25%; Thereafter: 100.00% 

Raymond James 
Prior to 6/1/26: Non-callable 

Thereafter: In whole or in part at any time at 100%1 

Pinnacle 
Prior to 6/1/21: Non-callable 

Thereafter: In whole at any time at 100%2 

Capital One 
Option A: In whole on any payment date at 100% after 6/1/22 

Option B: In whole on any payment date at 100% after 6/1/23 

Public Sale Typically non callable for 10-years; pre-payable thereafter at 100% 

1 Partial prepayments are subject to a minimum amount of $1,000,000. 

2 Beginning June 1, 2021, the loan is subject to prepayment in part once a year on a payment date in a minimum amount of $500,000 

at a price equal to par plus a $500 re-amortization fee. The prepayment will be applied on a pro-rata basis. 

 

3. Advance Refunding and Negative Arbitrage 

 

Due to the optional redemption provisions included in the 2008 and 2009 GO Bonds, the outstanding bonds 

cannot be called (redeemed) from the current bond holders until 6/1/2018 and 6/1/2019, respectively; 

however, the County has an opportunity to utilize an advance refunding to accomplish the refinancing. In order 

to effect this approach, the County can establish an escrow account and deposit US Treasury Bonds and other 

securities unconditionally guaranteed by the Federal Government into the escrow account for the benefit of 

the current GO Bond Holders. The deposit into the escrow account will be calculated such that, when 

combined with the future investment earnings, the escrow account will generate enough proceeds to make all 

remaining principal and interest payments due on the 2008 and 2009 GO Bonds through the call 

call/redemption dates. 

Under IRS guidelines, the amount of interest that can be earned in the escrow account established for the 

2008 and 2009A GO Bonds will be limited to the arbitrage yield, which is calculated based on the interest rate 

paid on the 2016 GO Refunding Bond (2.16% under the Raymond James Option A proposal and 2.18% under 

the Key Option B proposal). In the current market, US Treasury Bonds and similar securities that could be 

purchased for the County’s advance refunding escrow account are yielding approximately 0.79-0.86%. 

Negative arbitrage is the concept that measures the difference between the legally allowed escrow earnings 

rate and the rate at which the escrow account can be invested in the current market – this calculation is 

shown in Table 3 below. If the County were able to earn the legally allowed investment rate, additional savings 

of approximately $779,473 could be achieved under Option A and $1,535,142 could be achieved under 

Option B.   



 
 
2016 General Obligation Refunding Bond RFP Summary 

April 5, 2016 

 

 
Member NYSE | FINRA | SIPC Page 4 

 

 

There are two ways that the County could mitigate the negative arbitrage. First, the County could earn a higher 

interest rate in the escrow account; however, the earnings rate is determined based on rates available in the 

current market which are reflected in this analysis. Second, the County could wait until the call date to issue a 

Refunding Bond in which case no escrow account would be required. This approach is an option, but the 

County would be exposed to interest rate movement over the next several years. If interest rates increase 

during this 2-3 year timeframe by more than approximately 0.84% (84bps), the County would have achieved 

better savings by moving forward with the advance refunding in today’s market.   

The negative arbitrage associated with the advance refunding transaction is not an “out of pocket” cost that 

the County has to pay; rather it is an opportunity cost that measures potential savings that are not realized. In 

the County’s current refunding opportunity, the projected savings are 2.4 - 2.8 times greater than the negative 

arbitrage.  Given the savings levels and the potential for interest rate volatility in the future, we feel the savings 

available through the advance refunding opportunity today outweighs the opportunity cost of the negative 

arbitrage.  

 

  

Table 3: Negative Arbitrage

Option A (Raymond James) Option B (Key)

Yield Earnings Yield Earnings

Projected Escrow Investment 0.79% $458,779 0.86% $1,037,692

Legally Permitted Escrow Earnings 2.16% $1,238,253 2.18% $2,572,834

Negative Arbitrage -1.37% -$779,473 -1.32% -$1,535,142



 
 
2016 General Obligation Refunding Bond RFP Summary 

April 5, 2016 

 

 
Member NYSE | FINRA | SIPC Page 5 

4. Estimated Savings 
 

A preliminary indication of the estimated savings structure for the Raymond James Option A and Key Option B 

proposals are shown in Table 4 below. These savings are compared to current Public Market estimates to 

provide additional perspective. The preliminary estimated savings shown in Table 4 are “Net Savings” that 

account for estimated costs of issuance and negative arbitrage. 

 

As shown in Table 4, the current market public sale is producing approximately $500,000 of additional 

savings when compared to the direct bank loan proposals received; however, as mentioned previously, the 

public sale interest rates cannot be “locked-in” until approximately 60 days from a decision to move forward 

with this approach.  If interest rates were to increase by more than 0.22% in Option A or 0.14% in Option B, the 

County would have achieved higher savings by moving forward with the bank proposals. 

 

 

  

Table 4: Estimated Debt Service Savings

Public Sale                                               

Closing June 23rd
 

Raymond James                         

Closing May 19th

Public Sale                                  

Closing June 23rd
 

Key Government Finance             

Closing May 19th 

Option A  Option A  Option B  Option B

   

1 Summary of  Bonds Refunded

2 Par Amount $27,460,000  $27,460,000 $46,825,000  $46,825,000

3 Coupon 4.25% - 4.75%  4.25% - 4.75% 4.00% - 4.75%  4.00% - 4.75%

4 Call Date 6/1/2018  6/1/2018 6/1/18 & 6/1/19  6/1/18 & 6/1/19

5 Maturities 6/1/19 - 6/1/28  6/1/19 - 6/1/28 6/1/19 - 6/1/29  6/1/19 - 6/1/29

6   

7 Summary of  Refunding   

8 Final Maturity 6/1/2028  6/1/2028 6/1/2029  6/1/2029

9 Interest Rate 1.96%  2.16% 2.05%  2.18%

10 Rate Expiration N/A  May 20th N/A  May 20th

11 Bank / Legal Fees N/A  $79,965 N/A  $0

12 Par Amount  $25,425,000  $29,586,000 $43,530,000  $50,697,000

13 Call Provision  6/1/26 at Par  6/1/26 at Par 6/1/26 at Par  See Footnotes
4

14    

15 Fiscal Year  Debt Service
2

Savings
2  Debt Service

3
Savings

3
Debt Service

2
Savings

2  Debt Service
3

Savings
3

16 2016
 1

-$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

17 2017 1,007,569          182,013             1,007,360          182,222             1,745,113          246,131             1,692,034          299,209             

18 2018 1,073,150          116,431             1,007,562          182,019             1,858,700          132,544             1,692,205          299,039             

19 2019 3,348,150          236,431             3,402,441          182,140             4,128,700          257,544             4,087,146          299,097             

20 2020 3,234,900          235,919             3,289,414          181,404             4,860,600          381,881             4,942,594          299,887             

21 2021 3,723,000          236,031             3,777,533          181,498             5,213,500          388,394             5,302,963          298,930             

22 2022 3,424,450          237,719             3,479,836          182,333             6,148,050          387,381             6,236,610          298,821             

23 2023 3,305,950          236,581             3,361,042          181,489             5,940,300          389,494             6,030,825          298,969             

24 2024 3,181,950          237,425             3,237,394          181,981             5,736,550          384,088             5,820,958          299,680             

25 2025 3,052,700          235,000             3,106,019          181,681             5,521,550          386,413             5,609,140          298,823             

26 2026 2,933,450          234,825             2,986,114          182,161             5,310,800          386,538             5,397,459          299,879             

27 2027 2,813,700          235,150             2,866,461          182,389             5,104,050          385,175             5,189,957          299,268             

28 2028 2,693,450          235,975             2,747,082          182,343             4,891,050          387,375             4,979,592          298,833             

29 2029 -                      -                      -                      -                      2,425,650          141,975             2,459,473          108,152             

30 Total  33,792,419$  2,659,500$     34,268,258$  2,183,661$    58,884,613$  4,254,931$     59,440,956$  3,698,588$    

31

32 Breakeven Interest Rate Movement to Direct Bank Loan + 22bps N/A + 14bps N/A

33

34 Net Present Value Savings
2,3  2,367,799$         1,923,947$        3,733,160$         3,242,999$        

35 % NPV Savings
2,3  8.62%  7.01% 7.97%  6.93%

36

37 Arbitrage Yield 1.80% 2.16% 1.88% 2.18%

38 Escrow Yield 0.77% 0.79% 0.85% 0.86%

39 Negative Arbitrage
2,3

564,078$           779,473$           1,166,165$        1,535,142$        
1
 Assumes the County makes an equity contribution at closing for the direct bank loans.

2
 Preliminary and subject to change, rates as of 3/30/16. Assumes a closing date of June 23rd. Savings shown include assumed Cost of Issuance of $225,000 and Underwriter's Discount. Assumes Escrow is funded with SLGS.

3
 Preliminary and subject to change. Assumes a closing date of May 19th. Savings shown include assumed Cost of Issuance of $125,000 plus bank fees (if necessary). Assumes Escrow is funded with SLGS.

4
 In whole at any time at: Year 1: No Call; Year 2: 101.00%; Year 3: 100.75%; Year 4: 100.50%; Year 5: 100.25%; Thereafter: 100.00%



 
 
2016 General Obligation Refunding Bond RFP Summary 

April 5, 2016 

 

 
Member NYSE | FINRA | SIPC Page 6 

Next Steps 

 

April 5th           County Board Meeting 

– County Board considers approval of a Preliminary Findings Resolution and 

adoption of a Bond Order (applicable to either Direct Bank Loan or Public 

Sale Approach) 

– County Board determines preferred refinancing approach (Direct Bank Loan 

or Public Sale) 

– If Direct Bank Loan is preferred, County Board considers approval of 

winning bidder by motion 

 

After April 5th     Notice of Bond Order Published (start of 30-day wait period). 

 

If a direct bank loan is the preferred approach, the following additional actions will be required: 

 

April 19th     County Board Meeting 

– County Board considers approval of an Issuance Resolution 

 

May 3rd     LGC considers approval of the financing. 

 

Week of May 9th  Lock-in Escrow Securities and finalize numbers 

 

Week of May 16th     Close on Financing. 

 

If a public sale is the preferred approach, Davenport, County Staff and Bond Counsel will develop a schedule 

which will unfold between April through June.   

  



 
 
2016 General Obligation Refunding Bond RFP Summary 

April 5, 2016 

 

 
Member NYSE | FINRA | SIPC Page 7 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) has clarified that a broker, dealer or municipal securities dealer engaging in municipal 

advisory activities outside the scope of underwriting a particular issuance of municipal securities should be subject to municipal advisor registration. 

Davenport & Company LLC (“Davenport”) has registered as a municipal advisor with the SEC. As a registered municipal advisor Davenport may provide 

advice to a municipal entity or obligated person. An obligated person is an entity other than a municipal entity, such as a not for profit corporation, that 

has commenced an application or negotiation with an entity to issue municipal securities on its behalf and for which it will provide support. If and when 

an issuer engages Davenport to provide financial advisory or consultant services with respect to the issuance of municipal securities, Davenport is 

obligated to evidence such a financial advisory relationship with a written agreement. 

When acting as a registered municipal advisor Davenport is a fiduciary required by federal law to act in the best interest of a municipal entity without 

regard to its own financial or other interests. Davenport is not a fiduciary when it acts as a registered investment advisor, when advising an obligated 

person, or when acting as an underwriter, though it is required to deal fairly with such persons.  

This material was prepared by public finance, or other non-research personnel of Davenport.  This material was not produced by a research analyst, 

although it may refer to a Davenport research analyst or research report.  Unless otherwise indicated, these views (if any) are the author’s and may 

differ from those of the Davenport fixed income or research department or others in the firm. Davenport may perform or seek to perform financial 

advisory services for the issuers of the securities and instruments mentioned herein. 

This material has been prepared for information purposes only and is not a solicitation of any offer to buy or sell any security/instrument or to 

participate in any trading strategy.  Any such offer would be made only after a prospective participant had completed its own independent investigation 

of the securities, instruments or transactions and received all information it required to make its own investment decision, including, where applicable, 

a review of any offering circular or memorandum describing such security or instrument.  That information would contain material information not 

contained herein and to which prospective participants are referred.  This material is based on public information as of the specified date, and may be 

stale thereafter.  We have no obligation to tell you when information herein may change.  We make no representation or warranty with respect to the 

completeness of this material.  Davenport has no obligation to continue to publish information on the securities/instruments mentioned herein. 

Recipients are required to comply with any legal or contractual restrictions on their purchase, holding, sale, exercise of rights or performance of 

obligations under any securities/instruments transaction.   

The securities/instruments discussed in this material may not be suitable for all investors or issuers.  Recipients should seek independent financial 

advice prior to making any investment decision based on this material.  This material does not provide individually tailored investment advice or offer 

tax, regulatory, accounting or legal advice.  Prior to entering into any proposed transaction, recipients should determine, in consultation with their own 

investment, legal, tax, regulatory and accounting advisors, the economic risks and merits, as well as the legal, tax, regulatory and accounting 

characteristics and consequences, of the transaction.  You should consider this material as only a single factor in making an investment decision.   

The value of and income from investments and the cost of borrowing may vary because of changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, default 

rates, prepayment rates, securities/instruments prices, market indexes, operational or financial conditions or companies or other factors.  There may be 

time limitations on the exercise of options or other rights in securities/instruments transactions.  Past performance is not necessarily a guide to future 

performance and estimates of future performance are based on assumptions that may not be realized.  Actual events may differ from those assumed 

and changes to any assumptions may have a material impact on any projections or estimates.  Other events not taken into account may occur and may 

significantly affect the projections or estimates.  Certain assumptions may have been made for modeling purposes or to simplify the presentation 

and/or calculation of any projections or estimates, and Davenport does not represent that any such assumptions will reflect actual future events.  

Accordingly, there can be no assurance that estimated returns or projections will be realized or that actual returns or performance results will not 

materially differ from those estimated herein.  This material may not be sold or redistributed without the prior written consent of Davenport. 

Version 01.13.14 |CH MB TC 



The Board of Commissioners for the County of Moore, North Carolina met in a regular 

meeting in a regular meeting in the Commissioners’ Meeting Room located on the second floor 

of the Historic Courthouse in Carthage, North Carolina, the regular place of meeting, at 5:30 

p.m. on April 5, 2016. 

Present:  Chairman Nick Picerno, presiding, and Commissioners  

  

Absent:    

  

Also Present:  

  

*     *     *     *     *     * 

___________________ introduced the following resolution the title of which was read 

and a copy of which had been previously distributed to each Commissioner: 

RESOLUTION MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS AND 
DETERMINATIONS AND AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF AN 
APPLICATION WITH THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMISSION IN 
CONNECTION WITH THE PROPOSED ISSUANCE OF GENERAL 
OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS BY THE COUNTY OF MOORE, 
NORTH CAROLINA 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners (the “Board”) for the County of 

Moore, North Carolina (the “County”): 

Section 1.  The Board does hereby determine that: 

(a) Preliminary analysis has been completed to demonstrate a benefit of refunding all or a 

portion of the County’s outstanding (i) General Obligation Public Improvement Bonds, Series 

2008, dated May 28, 2008, and maturing June 1, 2019 through 2028, inclusive, and (ii) General 

Obligation Public Improvement Bonds, Series 2009A, dated May 5, 2009, and maturing June 1, 

2020 to 2029, inclusive (collectively the “Bonds to be Refunded”). 



2 

(b) The Board wishes to commence the procedures for the issuance of not to exceed 

$57,790,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds of the County (the “Bonds”) for the purpose 

of providing funds, together with any other available funds, to refund all or a portion of the 

Bonds to be Refunded. 

(c) The annual audits of the County show the County to be in strict compliance with debt 

management policies and that the budgetary and fiscal management policies are in compliance 

with law. 

Section 2.  The filing by the County of an application with the North Carolina Local 

Government Commission for approval of the issuance of the Bonds in an aggregate principal 

amount not to exceed $57,790,000 is hereby authorized, ratified and approved. 

Section 3.  Womble Carlyle Sandridge & Rice, LLP is hereby appointed to serve as bond 

counsel to the County and Davenport & Company LLC is hereby appointed to serve as financial 

advisor to the County in connection with the proposed issuance of the Bonds, but soley at the 

pleasure of the County. 

Section 4.  The Chairman of the Board, the County Manager, the Chief Finance Officer 

and the Clerk to the Board for the County are hereby authorized and directed to execute and 

deliver such documents and to take such other actions as may be necessary or appropriate for the 

purpose applying to the North Carolina Local Government Commission for approval of the 

issuance of the Bonds and engaging bond counsel, the financial advisor or any other member of 

the financing team in connection with the sale and issuance of the Bonds in a manner consistent 

with the terms of this resolution.  All such actions heretofore taken by the Chairman of the 

Board, the County Manager, the Chief Finance Officer and the Clerk to the Board for the County 

are hereby authorized, ratified and approved. 

Section 5.  This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage. 



3 

Thereupon, the resolution entitled “RESOLUTION MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS 

AND DETERMINATIONS AND AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF AN APPLICATION 

WITH THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMISSION IN CONNECTION WITH THE 

PROPOSED ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS BY THE 

COUNTY OF MOORE, NORTH CAROLINA” was adopted by the following vote: 

Ayes:  

  

Noes:  

  

Thereupon, __________________ introduced the following order authorizing bonds, the 

title of which was read and a copy of which had been previously distributed to each 

Commissioner: 



4 

ORDER AUTHORIZING 
$57,790,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS 

BE IT ORDERED by the Board of Commissioners for the County of Moore, North 

Carolina: 

1.  That pursuant to The Local Government Bond Act, as amended, the County of Moore, 

North Carolina, is hereby authorized to contract a debt, in addition to any and all other debt 

which said County may now or hereafter have power and authority to contract, and in evidence 

thereof to issue General Obligation Refunding Bonds in an aggregate principal amount not 

exceeding $57,790,000 for the purpose of providing funds, together with any other available 

funds, to (a) refund all or a portion of the County’s outstanding (i) General Obligation Public 

Improvement Bonds, Series 2008, dated May 28, 2008, and (ii) General Obligation Public 

Improvement Bonds, Series 2009A, dated May 5, 2009, and (b) pay certain expenses related 

thereto. 

2.  That taxes shall be levied in an amount sufficient to pay the principal of and the 

interest on said bonds. 

3.  That a sworn statement of debt of said County has been filed with the Clerk to the 

Board and is open to public inspection. 

4.  That this order shall take effect upon adoption. 

The Board of Commissioners thereupon designated the Chief Finance Officer of the 

County to make and file with the Clerk to said Board the sworn statement of debt of said County 

which is required by The Local Government Bond Act, as amended, to be filed after the bond 

order has been introduced.  The Board of Commissioners also designated the Chief Finance 

Officer to file with the Clerk to said Board the statement of total estimated interest which is 

required by The Local Government Bond Act, as amended, to be filed with the Clerk to said 



5 

Board at the time the bond order is introduced and further directed the Clerk to said Board to file 

a copy of such statement with the Local Government Commission. 

Thereupon, the Chief Finance Officer of said County caused to be filed with the Clerk to 

the Board of Commissioners, in the presence of said Board, the sworn statement of debt and the 

statement of total estimated interest as so required. 

Thereupon, the order entitled “ORDER AUTHORIZING $57,790,000 GENERAL 

OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS” was adopted by the following vote: 

Ayes:  

  

Noes:  

  

The Clerk to said Board was thereupon directed to publish the aforementioned order, 

together with the appended statement as required by The Local Government Bond Act, as 

amended, once in The Pilot. 

*     *     *     *     *     * 

I, Laura M. Williams, Clerk to the Board of Commissioners for the County of Moore, 

North Carolina, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true copy of so much of the 

proceedings of said Board for said County at a regular meeting held on April 5, 2016, as relates 

in any way to the passage of the foregoing resolution and the adoption of the foregoing order 

authorizing general obligation refunding bonds of said County and that said proceedings are 

recorded in the minutes of said Board. 

I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY that proper notice of such regular meeting was 

given as required by North Carolina law. 



6 

WITNESS my hand and the official seal of said County this 5th day of April, 2016. 

  
Clerk to the Board 

[SEAL] 

WCSR 35822006v2 



COUNTY OF MOORE, NORTH CAROLINA  
SWORN STATEMENT OF DEBT MADE PURSUANT TO THE  

LOCAL GOVERNMENT BOND ACT, AS AMENDED 

I, Caroline Xiong, Chief Finance Officer of the County of Moore, North Carolina, having 
been designated by the Board of Commissioners for said County to make and file with the Clerk 
to the Board of Commissioners a statement of the debt of said County pursuant to The Local 
Government Bond Act, as amended, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the following is a true 
statement as shown by the books in my office, not taking into consideration any debt incurred or 
to be incurred in anticipation of the collection of taxes or other revenues or in anticipation of the 
sale of bonds other than funding and refunding bonds: 

(a) GROSS DEBT 

a(1) Outstanding debt evidenced by bonds: 

Public Improvement, Series 2008 
Public Improvement, Series 2009A 
Public Improvement, Series 2009B 
Public Improvement Refunding, Series 2012 

Total 

 

$32,290,000 
23,690,000 
3,440,000 

     810.000 

$60,230,000 
 

a(2) Bonds authorized by orders introduced, 
but not yet adopted: 

Refunding Bonds 

 
 
 

$57,790,000 
 

a(3) Unissued bonds authorized by 
adopted orders: 

 
$                0 

 

a(4) Outstanding debt, not evidenced by bonds: $                0 

(a) GROSS DEBT, being the sum of a(1), a(2), a(3) and 
a(4): 

 
$118,020,000 

(b) DEDUCTIONS 

b(1) Funding and refunding bonds authorized by orders 
introduced but not yet adopted: 

 
$57,790,000 

b(2) Funding and refunding bonds authorized but not yet 
issued: 

 
$                0 



2 

b(3) The amount of money held in sinking funds or 
otherwise for the payment of any part of the 
principal of gross debt other than debt incurred for 
water, gas, electric light or power purposes or 
sanitary sewer purposes (to the extent that the bonds 
are deductible under G.S. 159-55(b)): 

 
 
 
 
 

$                0 

b(4) Bonded debt included in gross debt and incurred, or 
to be incurred, for water, gas, electric light or power 
purposes: 

 
 

$                0 

b(5) Bonded debt included in gross debt and incurred, or 
to be incurred, for sanitary sewer system purposes 
(to the extent that said debt is made deductible by 
G.S. 159-55(b)): 

 
 
 

$                0 

b(6) Uncollected special assessments heretofore levied 
for local improvements for which any part of the 
gross debt (that is not otherwise deducted) was or is 
to be incurred to the extent that such assessments 
will be applied, when collected, to the payment of 
any part of the gross debt: 

 
 
 
 
 

$                0 

b(7) The amount, as estimated by the Chief Finance 
Officer, of special assessments to be levied for 
local improvements for which any part of the gross 
debt (that is not otherwise deducted) was or is to be 
incurred, to the extent that the special assessments, 
when collected, will be applied to the payment of 
any part of the gross debt: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

$                0 

(b) DEDUCTIONS, being the sum of b(1), b(2), b(3), 
b(4), b(5), b(6) and b(7): 

 
$57,790,000 

 
(c) NET DEBT 

(c) NET DEBT, being the difference between the 
GROSS DEBT (a) and the DEDUCTIONS (b): 

 
$60,230,000 

(d) ASSESSED VALUE 

(d) ASSESSED VALUE of property subject to taxation 
by the County, as revealed by the County tax records 
and certified to the County by the assessor: 

 
 

$12,006,812,423 



3 

(e) PERCENTAGE 

(e) Percentage which the NET DEBT (c) bears to the 
ASSESSED VALUE (d): 

 
            0.50% 

 
The foregoing statement is true. 

____________________________________ 
Chief Finance Officer 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA ) 
) ss: 

COUNTY OF MOORE ) 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this ____ day of April, 2016. 

__________________________________________ 
Notary Public 

My Commission expires _________________. 

I, Laura M. Williams, Clerk to the Board of Commissioners for the County of Moore, 
North Carolina, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true copy of a statement which 
was filed with me at a meeting of the Board of Commissioners for said County held on April 5, 
2016, after the introduction of an order authorizing bonds of said County, and that said statement 
is open to public inspection in my office. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal of said County, this 5th day of April, 2016. 

__________________________________________ 
Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

WCSR 35881945v1 



COUNTY OF MOORE, NORTH CAROLINA 
STATEMENT OF TOTAL ESTIMATED INTEREST PURSUANT TO THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT BOND ACT, AS AMENDED 

I, Caroline Xiong, Chief Finance Officer of the County of Moore, North Carolina (the 
“County”), having been designated by the Board of Commissioners for the County (the “Board”) 
to make and file with the Clerk to the Board a statement of total estimated interest pursuant to 
The Local Government Bond Act, as amended, DO HEREBY CERTIFY as follows: 

1.  On April 5, 2016, the Board for the County introduced a bond order authorizing the 
issuance by the County of not exceeding $57,790,000 Refunding Bonds (the “Bonds”). 

2.  If the Bonds are duly authorized and issued, I have estimated that the total amount of 
interest to be paid by the County over the expected term of the Bonds to be $9,223,693.  Such 
estimate is based on a number of assumptions regarding certain future events and circumstances, 
including the following: 

(a) The Bonds will be issued in one series and will mature or be payable in annual 
installments of principal payable annually through 2029, with principal and interest installments 
scheduled to achieve approximately level debt service savings resulting from the refunding. 

(b) The Bonds will bear interest at an interest rate of 2.29% per annum, payable 
semiannually. Such interest rate approximates a current market rate for similar type debt 
instruments as determined by the County’s finance department in consultation with a financial 
advisory firm knowledgeable in the pricing of municipal securities similar to the Bonds.  
Prevailing interest rates at the time the Bonds are awarded will vary based upon a variety of 
economic conditions. 

(c) There will not be any change from the current perceived credit quality of the County.  
Changes in the County’s perceived credit quality would have an effect on the interest rates the 
County is able to achieve upon sale of the Bonds.  

(d)  There will not be any change from the current prevailing market demand for 
municipal bonds in general, and bonds issued by or on behalf of North Carolina local 
government entities.  A change in demand in general for obligations such as the Bonds would 
have an effect on the interest rate on the Bonds at the time of sale. 

(e)  The current federal and State tax treatment arising from ownership of the Bonds, 
receipt of payments of principal and interest thereon and the ownership or disposition thereof 
will continue in their present forms. Changes in income tax rates or other State or federal tax 
treatment arising from ownership on the Bonds could have an effect on the interest rate on the 
Bonds at the time of sale. 

(f)  The Bonds will bear interest at fixed rates determined at the time of sale until their 
respective maturity dates. 

(g)  Neither the County nor any purchaser of the Bonds will obtain any credit 
enhancement (such as a policy of municipal bond insurance) to assure payment of principal of 



2 

and interest on the Bonds.  The arrangement of such an instrument would have an effect on the 
interest rate on the Bonds. 

The total estimated amount of interest on the Bonds over the expected term of the Bonds 
is preliminary and for general purposes only.  The County makes no assurances that the 
assumptions upon which such estimate is based will occur, and the occurrence of certain of such 
assumptions is beyond the control of the County.  Differences between the actual circumstances 
at the time the Bonds are issued and the assumptions set forth above could result in significant 
differences between the total amount of estimated interest and the total amount of actual interest 
to be paid on the Bonds if and when issued.  Pursuant to N.C.G.S. 159-55(d), the validity of the 
Bonds is not subject to challenge on the grounds that the actual interest to be paid on the Bonds 
when issued is different than the total amount of estimated interest on the Bonds set forth above. 

Signed this 5th day of April, 2016. 

__________________________________________ 
Chief Finance Officer 



3 

*       *       *       *       * 

I, Laura M. Williams, Clerk to the Board of Commissioners for the County of Moore, 
North Carolina, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true copy of a statement of total 
estimated interest which was filed with me at a meeting of the Board of Commissioners for said 
County held on April 5, 2016, after the introduction of an order authorizing bonds of said 
County, and that said statement is open to public inspection in my office. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal of said County this 5th day of April, 2016. 

__________________________________________ 
Clerk to the Board 

[SEAL] 



  Agenda Item:         
         Meeting Date:  4/5/16 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM:  Randy G. Gould, Public Works Director        
 
DATE:            March 24, 2016    
 
SUBJECT:  Terry’s Plumbing Change Order #5 (Final)  
              2013 Water Sources Project 
 
PRESENTER: Randy G. Gould, PE 
 
REQUEST: 
 

Approve change order #5 (final) to the construction contract with Terry’s Plumbing reducing the 
contract price by $69,291.75 and authorize the Chairman to sign. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 

The construction contract was awarded to Terry’s Plumbing on November 18, 2014 in the amount of 
$2,134,647.50.  Change order Numbers 1 thru 4 changed the valve types, added SCADA equipment, and other 
miscellaneous improvements for a total cost increase of $53,259.00 and increased the contract time by 58 
days, which established the Contract Substantial Completion Date at January 5, 2016.  The actual Substantial 
Completion Date was reached on January 20, 2016.  Therefore, liquidated damages at the contract rate of 
$1,000/day is recommended in the amount of $l5,000.00. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
 
 Approve change order #5 to the construction contract and proceed with project closeout. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
 
 Change order #5 decreases the contract amount by $69,291.75 for a new not-to-exceed total of    
$2,118,614.75. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
 Make a motion to approve change order #5 (final) to the construction contract with  
Terry’s Plumbing reducing the contract price by $69,29l.75 and authorize the Chairman to sign.  
 
 Make a motion to assess liquidated damages to Terry’s Plumbing in the amount of $l5,000.00. 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 Change order #5 (Final) 
 
I:PublicWorks/Water/WaterResourcesProject2013/FinalApproval/BOC040516memo 

 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII. D.









  Agenda Item:         
         Meeting Date:  04/05/16 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:      
   
FROM:  Randy G. Gould, PE 
   Public Works Director   
 
DATE:   March 24, 2016    
 
SUBJECT:  Midland Road Waterline for Carolina Eye Rural Center Grant Close Out 
  
PRESENTER:  Randy G. Gould, PE  
 
REQUEST: 
 Authorize Moore County Public Works to submit Final Reporting Form including Job Certifications 
Form to the NC Rural Economic Development Center for the Midland Road Waterline Upgrade Project and 
authorize the Chairman to sign all necessary documents.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
 Carolina Eye, a medical facility on Midland Road, wished to expand their operations.  The expansion 
required a greater fire flow to meet the Village of Pinehurst requirement.  In order to provide the needed fire 
flow a 12-inch water main was required along NC 211 from Page Road to the traffic circle, along Midland 
Road to the Carolina Eye Facility.  The estimated cost was $724,800.00.  It was projected that a minimum of 
15 jobs would be created.  In 2011, Moore County applied for and received a grant from the NC Rural Center 
in the amount of $l50,000.00, $1,000.00 per job.  Moore County agreed to pay 2/3 of the project cost minus 
half of the grant or $408,200.00, funded by the 2010 Limited Obligation Bonds Proceeds reimbursement.  
Carolina Eye agreed to pay the remaining 1/3 and substantiate the created jobs. 
 The project was bid on May 17, 2012 and Sandhill’s Contractors, Inc. was the low bidder.  The overall 
project cost remained unchanged at $724,800.00.  The project construction was completed and the 
construction contract closed out on February 5, 2013. 
 Carolina Eye provided the requested job documentation.  They show that an additional 24 jobs were 
created and sustained during the 6 month period from July 1 to December 31, 2015, exceeding the 15 
minimum job created criteria.  
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
 Authorize submittal of Final Reporting Form including Job Certification Form. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
 The Rural Center grant totals $l50,000.00. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 Make a motion to authorize Moore County Public Works to submit Final Reporting Form including 
Job Certification form to the NC Rural Economic Development Center for the Midland Road Waterline 
Upgrade Project and authorize the Chairman to sign all necessary documents. 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 

Final Reporting Form 
Job Creation Form 
 
 
 

I:PublicWorks/Water/MidlandRoadWL/AgendaItems/040516Memo 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.E.







  Agenda Item:         
         Meeting Date:  4/5/16 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM:  Randy G. Gould, Public Works Director   
 
DATE:  March 24, 2016   
 
SUBJECT:  Interceptor Phase III Inspection and Cleaning Project Contract  
 
PRESENTER: Randy Gould, PE 
 
 
REQUEST: 
 Approve contract with Hydrostructures, P.A. in the amount of $68,477.50 for interceptor 
sewer inspection and cleaning and authorize the Chairman to sign. 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 

 Bids were received on January 21, 2016 for the Interceptor Phase III inspection and cleaning 
project.  Two responsive bids were received.  Hydrostructures, P.A. was the low bidder at 
$68,477.50. 
 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
 

 Approve contract and proceed with the project. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
 

 The contract price will be $68,477.50. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
 Make a motion to approve contract with Hydrostructures, P.A. in an amount of $68,477.50 for 
the interceptor inspection and cleaning project and authorize the Chairman to sign. 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 

 
Bid Tabulation 
Hydrostructures Contract 
 
 
 
I:PublicWorks/Wastewater/InterceptorSewer/FY2015-16InterceptorCleaning-InspectionProject/040516Board Memo 

 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.F.



INTERCEPTOR PHASE III INSPECTION AND CLEANING PROJECT

Vendor Total Cost

Hydrostructures P.A. $68,477.50

Compliance Enviro Systems LLC (CES) $119,832.50

Received one non‐responsive bid ‐ vendor's response could not perform scope of work

BID TABULATION

INFORMAL BID 2016‐02



 

FN 16-0094 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 

 

COUNTY OF MOORE 

 
 
This Contract is entered into the 5th day of April, 2016, between the County of Moore, a political 

subdivision of the State of North Carolina (the “County”), Hydrostructures, P.A., a professional 
corporation duly formed under the laws of the State of North Carolina (the “Contractor”). 

 
1. Services to be Provided and Agreed Charges 

 
The Contractor agrees to provide services and materials (collectively referred to as “Services”) 

contained in this Contract pursuant to the provisions and specifications identified in Attachment 1 
and Attachment 2, which are incorporated by reference in this Contract.  Pursuant to Section 3 of this 
Contract, the County agrees to pay for Services contained in Attachment 1 and Attachment 2. 
 

2. Term of Contract 

 
The term of this Contract is from April 5, 2016, through August 30, 2016. 
 
This Contract is subject to the availability of funds to purchase the specified Services and may be 

terminated at any time during the term upon thirty (30) days notice if such funds become unavailable. 
 

3. Payment to Contractor 

 
The Contractor will receive from the County a sum not to exceed $68,477.50 as full 

compensation for the provision of Services as provided herein.  The County agrees to pay at the rates 
specified for Services, satisfactorily performed or provided, in accordance with this Contract.  Unless 
otherwise specified, the Contractor will submit an itemized invoice to the County by the end of the 
month during which Services are performed or provided.  Payment will be processed promptly upon 
receipt and approval of the invoice by the County. 

 
4. Independent Contractor 

 
The County and Contractor agree that the Contractor is an independent contractor and will not 

represent itself as an agent or employee of the County for any purpose in the performance of the 
Contractor’s duties under this Contract.  Accordingly, the Contractor will be responsible for payment 
of all federal, state and local taxes as well as business license fees arising out of the Contractor’s 
activities in accordance with this Contract.  For purposes of this Contract taxes will include, but not 
be limited to, Federal and State Income, Social Security and Unemployment Insurance taxes. 

 
The Contractor, as an independent contractor, will perform all services in a professional manner 

and in accordance with the standards of applicable professional organizations and licensing agencies. 
 

5. Insurance 

 
The Contractor will maintain Workers’ Compensation Insurance for all of the Contractor’s 

employees.  The Workers’ Compensation Insurance will be in the amounts prescribed by the laws of 
the State of North Carolina. 



 

FN 16-0094 Page 2 of 16 

 
The Contractor will maintain, at its expense, the following minimum insurance coverage: 
 

 Bodily Injury $1,000,000.00 per occurrence 
 Property Damage $100,000.00 per occurrence 
 Bodily Injury/Property Damage $1,000,000.00 combined single limit per occurrence 
 

Professional liability insurance will be required whenever the Contractor is required to be 
certified, licensed, or registered by a regulatory entity or where the Contractor’s error in judgment, 
planning, design, or etc. could result in economic loss to the County.  If professional liability 
insurance is required, the coverage must provide for no less than $1,000,000.00 combined single 
limit per occurrence. 

 
The Contractor agrees to furnish the County proof of compliance with the insurance coverage 

requirements of this Contract upon request.  The Contractor, upon request by the County, will furnish 
a certificate of insurance from an insurance company, licensed to do business in the State of North 
Carolina and acceptable to the County, verifying the existence of the insurance coverage required by 
the County.  The certificate will provide for sixty (60) days advance notice in the event of 
termination or cancellation of coverage. 

 
6. Indemnification 

 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor will indemnify and hold harmless the 

County, its officials, agents, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and 
expenses, direct, indirect, or consequential (including but not limited to fees and charges of engineers 
or architects, attorneys, and other professionals and costs related to court action or arbitration) arising 
out of or resulting from the performance of this Contract or the actions of the Contractor, its officials, 
employees, or contractors under this Contract or under the contracts entered into by the Contractor in 
connection with this Contract.  This indemnification will survive the termination of this Contract. 

 
7. Health and Safety 

 
The Contractor will be responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all safety 

precautions and programs required by OSHA and all other regulatory agencies while providing 
Services under this Contract. 

 
8. E-Verify 

 
Pursuant to North Carolina General Statute § 143-133.3, E-verify Compliance, the County may 

not enter into a contract unless the contractor, and the contractor’s subcontractors under the contract, 
comply with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the General Statutes.  The Contractor 
represents and warrants that it is in compliance with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of 
the General Statutes.  Further, the Contractor warrants that any subcontractors used by the Contractor 
will be in compliance with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the General Statutes. 

 

9. Iran Divestment Act Certification 

 

Seller certifies that: (i) Seller is not listed on the Final Divestment List created by the State 
Treasurer pursuant to N.C.G.S. § 143C-6A-4 (the “Final Divestment List”), and (ii) Seller will not 



 

FN 16-0094 Page 3 of 16 

utilize any subcontractor performing work under this Purchase Order which is listed on the Final 
Divestment List. The Final Divestment List can be found on the State Treasurer’s website at the 
address www.nctreasurer.com/Iran and should be updated every 180 days. 

 
10. Non-Discrimination in Employment 

 
The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because 

of age, sex, race, creed, national origin, or disability. In the event the Contractor is determined by the 
final order of an appropriate agency or court to be in violation of this provision or any non-
discrimination provision of federal, state or local law, this Contract may be suspended or terminated, 
in whole or in part, by the County.  In addition, the Contractor may be declared ineligible for further 
contracts with the County. 

 
11. Governing Law 

 
The validity of this Contract and any of its terms or provisions, as well as the rights and duties of 

the parties to this Contract, are governed by the laws of the State of North Carolina.  All actions 
relating to this Contract in any way will be brought in the General Courts of Justice in the County of 
Moore and the State of North Carolina. 

 
12. Termination of Agreement 

 
This Contract may be terminated, without cause, by either party upon thirty (30) days written 

notice to the other party.  This termination notice period will begin upon receipt of the notice of 
termination.  Such a termination does not bar either party from pursuing a claim for damages for 
breach of the Contract. 

 
This Contract may be terminated, for cause, by the non-breaching party notifying the breaching 

party of a substantial failure to perform in accordance with the provisions of this Contract and if the 
failure is not corrected within ten (10) days of the receipt of the notification. Upon such termination, 
the parties will be entitled to such additional rights and remedies as permitted by law. 

 
Termination of this Contract, either with or without cause, will not form the basis of any claim 

for loss of anticipated profits by either party. 
 

13. Successors and Assigns 

 
The Contractor will not assign its interest in this Contract without the written consent of the 

County.  The Contractor has no authority to enter into contracts on behalf of the County. 
 

14. Compliance with Laws 

 
The Contractor represents that it is in compliance with all Federal, State, and local laws, 

regulations or orders, as amended or supplemented.  The implementation of this Contract will be 
carried out in strict compliance with all Federal, State, or local laws regarding discrimination in 
employment. 

 

http://www.nctreasurer.com/Iran


 

FN 16-0094 Page 4 of 16 

15. Notices 

 
All notices which may be required by this Contract or any rule of law will be effective when 

received by certified mail sent to the following addresses: 
 

COUNTY OF MOORE: MOORE COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS 
 ATTN:  RANDY GOULD, DIRECTOR 
 P.O. BOX 1927 
 CARTHAGE, NC  28327    
 
CONTRACTOR: HYDROSTRUCTURES, P.A. 

ATTN:  MICHAEL KOONCE, P.E. 
126 COMMERCE COURT 
P.O. BOX 1537 

 PITTSBORO, NC  27312 
 

16. Audit Rights 

 
For all Services being provided under this Contract, the County has the right to inspect, examine, 

and make copies of any and all books, accounts, invoices, records and other writings relating to the 
performance of those Services.  Audits will take place at times and locations mutually agreed upon 
by both parties.  The Contractor must make the materials to be audited available within one (1) week 
of the request for them. 

 
17. County Not Responsible for Expenses 

 
The County will not be liable to the Contractor for any expenses paid or incurred by the 

Contractor unless otherwise agreed in writing. 
 

18. Equipment 

 
The Contractor will supply, at its sole expense, all equipment, tools, materials, and supplies 

required to provide contracted Services unless otherwise agreed in writing. 
 

19. Priority of Documents 

 
In the event of any inconsistency between the Contract and any attachment to the Contract, the 

Contract will have priority. 
 

20. Severability 

 

If any provision of this Agreement shall be determined to be unenforceable by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, such determination will not affect any other provision of this Agreement. 

 

21. Non-Waiver 

 
The failure by one party to require performance of any provision of this Contract will not affect 

that party's right to require performance at any time thereafter or to enforce other remedies available 



 

FN 16-0094 Page 5 of 16 

to it by law or under this Contract.  In addition, no waiver of any breach or default of this Contract 
will constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach or default or a waiver of the provision itself. 

 
22. Entire Agreement 

 
This Contract, Attachment 1, and Attachment 2 constitute the entire understanding between the 

parties and supersedes all prior understandings and agreements, whether oral or written, relating to 
the subject matter hereof. 

 
23. Amendment 

 
This Contract may only be amended by the written mutual agreement of the parties. 
 

24. Drafted by Both Parties 

 
This Contract is deemed to have been drafted by both parties and no interpretation will be made 

to the contrary. 
 

25. Headings 

 
Subject headings are for convenience only and will not affect the construction or interpretation of 

any provision. 
 
 
The parties have expressed their agreement to these terms by causing this Contract to be executed 

by their duly authorized officers or agents.  This Contract is effective as of the date first written 
above. 
 
COUNTY OF MOORE  CONTRACTOR 

 
 
    
Nick J. Picerno, Chairman  By:   
Moore County Board of Commissioners  Title:   
 
Attest:  Attest: 

 

 

    
Laura M. Williams  By:   
Clerk to the Board  Title:   
 
PREAUDIT CERTIFICATE 

This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and 
Fiscal Control Act. 
 

 

  
Finance Officer 



ATTACHMENT 1 

FN 16-0094 

PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS 

 
INTERCEPTOR SEWER CLEANING AND INSPECTION PROJECT 

 
A. SCOPE:  It is the intent of this project to assess the internal structural and service 

condition of the sewer system.  The work specified includes all labor, materials, 
accessories, equipment and tools necessary to perform internal closed circuit television 
inspection of sewer mains, including manholes, and any necessary cleaning.  The sewer 
system is located in various areas near the County Club of North Carolina, Pinehurst NC, 
as identified in Attachment 2. 
 
There will be two forms of internal condition assessment addressed:  

 
1. Sewer Survey – Detailed viewing of the sewer (“survey”), with the aid of CCTV 

equipment, to assess internal structural condition, service condition and identify and 
locate miscellaneous construction features as well as assess the structural and service 
condition of laterals.  
 

2. Sewer Inspection – Viewing the sewer system pursuant to investigative work 
following other operational activity including:  
a. Locating manhole(s) and/or lateral(s); 
b. Sewer preconditioning and cleaning activities; and 
c. Such other similar purposes as may be required by the County. 

 
B. SUBMITTALS: 

 
1. Prior to performing the Services under this Contract, the Contractor will submit to the 

County the following information in writing: 
a. Project Schedule; 
b. Listing of Cleaning Equipment & Procedures; 
c. Listing of Flow Diversion Procedures; 
d. Listing of Preconditioning Procedures; 
e. Listing of Safety Precautions and Traffic Control Measures; 
f. Listing of CCTV Equipment; 
g. Listing of Backup and Standby Equipment; 
h. Manufacturers Details of CCTV Equipment; and 
i. Location where Debris from Cleaning will be Disposed. 

 
2. At regular intervals as the Services under this Contract are being performed, the 

Contractor will submit to the County the following information in writing: 
a. Updated Schedule of Planned Inspections/Cleaning of Sewer Reaches; 
b. Two copies of CCTV DVD’s, two Copies of Inspection Report incorporating a 

summary statistical breakdown of defects, and main findings; 
c. Daily Logs and Progress Reports; and 
d. Confined Space Entry Logs. 

 



 

FN 16-0094 Page 7 of 16 

C. DAILY RECORD:  The Contractor shall complete a daily written record (diary) detailing 
the work carried out and any small items of work which were incidental to the Contract. 
The Contractor shall include in his daily record reference to: 
 
1. Delays: e.g. dense traffic, lack of information, sickness, labor or equipment shortage; 
2. Equipment: on site, e.g. specialist cleaning, by-pass equipment, etc.; 
3. Submittals: to the designated representative; 
4. Personnel: on site by name, e.g., all labor, Specialist Services, etc.; 
5. Accident: report, e.g. all injuries, vehicles, etc.; 
6. Incident: report, e.g. damage to property, property owner complaint, etc.; 
7. Major defects encountered, including collapsed pipe, if any: e.g. cave-ins, sink holes, 

etc.; and 
8. Visitors: on site. 
 
The County’s designated representative on site shall certify receipt of the daily record 
noting any items and adding any observations with reference to claims for payment to the 
Contractor. The County may, at its discretion, for which the Contractor must receive 
direction in writing, make an exception to this requirement for weekly submission of 
progress rather than for daily submission. 
 

D. EQUIPMENT:  The television equipment used for the survey shall be one specifically 
designed and constructed for completing the specifications of this Contract.  
 
The survey/inspection vehicle shall comprise of two totally separate areas. One of these, 
designated as the viewing area, shall be insulated against noise and extremes in 
temperature, include the provision for air conditioning, and shall be provided with means 
of controlling external and internal sources of light in a manner capable of ensuring that 
the monitor screen display is in accordance with the specification. Seating 
accommodation shall be provided for the Contractor to enable two people, in addition to 
the operator, to view clearly the on-site monitor, which shall display the 
survey/inspection as it proceeds.  The working area shall be reserved for equipment, both 
operational and stored, and no equipment utilized within the sewer shall be allowed to be 
stored in the viewing area.  
 
The surveying/inspecting equipment shall be capable of surveying/inspecting a length of 
sewer up to at least 1,000 ft. when entry into the sewer may be obtained at each end and 
up to 750 ft. where a self-propelled unit is used, where entry is possible at one end only. 
The Contractor shall maintain this equipment in full working order and shall satisfy the 
County’s representative at the commencement of each working shift that all items of 
equipment have been provided and are in full working order.  
 
The surveying/inspecting equipment shall be positioned to reduce the risk of picture 
distortion.  In circular sewers the CCTV camera lens head shall be positioned centrally 
(i.e. in prime position) within the sewer.  In non-circular sewers, picture orientation shall 
be taken at mid-height, unless otherwise agreed, and centered horizontally. In all 
instances the camera lens head shall be positioned looking along the axis of the sewer 



 

FN 16-0094 Page 8 of 16 

when in prime position. A positioning tolerance of ± 10% of the vertical sewer dimension 
shall be allowed when the camera is in prime position.  
 
The surveying/inspecting equipment shall have locater/receiver transmitter to accurately 
locate the camera in metallic and non-metallic pipes and manholes.  The camera shall be 
digital and be of the color pan-and-tilt type.  The camera shall have suitable illumination 
capable of providing an accurate, uniform, and clear record of the sewer’s internal 
condition of the entire periphery of the pipe.  In-sewer lighting shall produce a minimum 
of 1.0 LUX illumination and lighting standards shall meet the requirements of the PACP 
and applicable codes regarding safety and power.  The camera shall be able to operate in 
100% humidity.  The camera, television monitor and other components of the video 
system shall be capable of producing a minimum 700 line resolution color video picture.  
The contractor shall maintain the camera in clear focus at all times.  The picture and 
resolution shall be to the satisfaction of the County.   The video camera shall include a 
titler with initial text screen appearing no more than 15 seconds at the beginning of the 
video footage, and shall appear before the 360 degree pan of the starting manhole.  The 
video shall show the following text at all times: 
 
1. Surveyed By Name; 
2. City and State; 
3. Street Name (Label Off-Road if not on a Street); 
4. Automatic update of the camera’s position from adjusted zero (feet); 
5. Pipe Dimensions (inches); 
6. Pipe Material; 
7. Manhole and Pipe Length Reference number (PLR). General convention allows 

upstream manhole number to be designated PLR; 
8. Direction of survey, i.e., downstream or upstream; and 
9. Time and Date. 
 
The surveying/inspecting equipment shall have correct adjustment demonstrated by use 
of the test tape or other device approved by the Contractor. Satisfactory performance of 
the camera shall be demonstrated by the recording of the appropriate test device at the 
commencement of work for a minimum period of 30 seconds.  This shall be used to 
assure or calibrate the distance, clarity, and color.  
 
The surveying/inspecting unit shall carry a range of flow control plugs or diaphragms for 
use in controlling the flow during the survey/inspection.  A minimum of one item of each 
size of plug or diaphragm, within the range of pipe sizes set out in the contract, shall be 
carried. 
 
The surveying/inspecting unit shall have on-call equipment available to carry out the 
flushing, rodding, and jetting of sewers as and when such procedures are deemed to be 
necessary. 

 
E. DIGITAL VIDEO:  DVDs or Thumb Drives shall be supplied for all television surveys.  

All DVDs or Thumb Drives shall be submitted to the County and will become the 



 

FN 16-0094 Page 9 of 16 

property of the County.  Digital video logs shall also be provided with the DVDs or 
Thumb Drives. 
 
Each DVD disc or Thumb Drive shall be labeled by reference to the header record for the 
survey section completed together with the following. 
 
1. Sequential (unique) DVD or Thumb Drive number; 
2. Basin/catchment worked in; 
3. Survey company name and logo; and 
4. Survey date. 

 
F. EXECUTION:  The camera shall be moved through the line at a moderate rate, stopping 

whenever necessary to permit proper documentation of any defects or infiltration and 
inflow.  In no instances shall the camera move at more than 30 linear feet per minute.  If 
the camera cannot move through the entire pipe section because of an obstruction the 
Contractor shall document area of obstruction, type of obstruction, then clean and 
continue to complete survey.   
 
1. Sewer Flow Control – When sewer line depth of flow at the upstream manhole of the 

sewer line being inspected is above the maximum allowable for television inspection, 
as given below, the inspection of the sewer line shall not proceed.  Considering the 
diurnal flow pattern witnessed within the sewer line, if the depth of flow decreases 
such that inspections is permissible, inspection may proceed during low flow 
conditions.  Otherwise, the flow shall be reduced to those levels shown below by one 
of the following methods: 

 
a. Lift station operation flow control by personnel; 
b. Plugging the flow; or 
c. Bypass the flow. 

 
When performing television inspection, depth of flow shall not exceed that shown 
below for the respective pipe sizes, as measured in the downstream manhole: 

 
Pipe Size           

(in) 
Maximum Depth of           

Flow for Pipe Diameter (in) 
6 1.20 
8 1.60 
10 2.00 
12 3.00 
15 3.75 
18 4.50 
21 5.25 
24 6.00 
27 8.10 
30 9.00 

> 30 30% 



 

FN 16-0094 Page 10 of 16 

 
2. Television Survey Logs – Printed survey logs shall be kept by the Contractor, and 

will clearly show the location in relation to an adjacent manhole.  All points of 
significance, such as service connections, roots and obstructions, broken or cracked 
pipe, offset or misaligned joints, scale or corrosion, infiltration and inflow, or other 
unusual conditions shall be recorded on the log.   
 

3. Manhole and Lift Station Inspections – Manholes and lift stations shall be inspected 
to assess general physical condition and to locate leaks which are causing or could 
cause soil erosion and degradation to the sanitary systems, and/or other underground 
utilities or surface structures, and which are allowing leaks into, or out of, the sewer 
system.  A full 360 degree pan of all manholes is required. This video footage shall 
occur at the beginning of each pipe segment survey inspection from the bottom of the 
manhole panning up the manhole shaft.  The Contractor shall cover the manhole 
opening to prevent too much light from entering the structure and to ensure a clear 
and focused view of the manhole interior.  In instances when the manhole is the 
terminating manhole, then the pan shall occur at the end of the pipe segment survey 
inspection.  Observations shall be recorded on a manhole and lift station physical 
inspection report form. Information recorded on these forms shall include but not be 
limited to location of the structure, relationship of a structure’s incoming and 
outgoing lines, size of lines, depth of structure, condition of cover, ring, wall, bench 
and invert, type of material, and any other pertinent information which would allow 
sources of Infiltration/Inflow.  Color photographs shall be taken of the interior and 
exposed exterior of all manholes and lift stations, and shall portray any defects as best 
as possible. The main purpose of the photographs is to assist the County in decisions 
for future testing or rehabilitation purposes. The “Manhole and Lift Station Inspection 
Report” form will be used to record the inspection results.  Besides any hard copy in 
the reports, photographs shall be provided to the County in a digital electronic version 
on computer discs (CD’s) in the JPEG format. Each digital photo file and photograph 
shall have a unique I.D. applied to it that will indicate which manhole or Lift station 
is pictured, and will correspond to that features I.D. in the data.  
 
Each CD shall be labeled by reference to the manhole and/or lift station inspection 
completed together with the following: 
 
a. Sequential (unique) CD number; 
b. Manhole or lift station worked in; 
c. Survey company name and logo; and 
d. Inspection date. 
 
All manholes shall be located in the field.  If the manhole is not visible it shall be 
marked with a visible marker.  The markers shall be provided by the contractor and 
the type (stake or pvc pipe) of marker shall be approved by the County before 
installation. 
 



 

FN 16-0094 Page 11 of 16 

4. Cleaning – The Contractor shall exert all reasonable care to avoid damage to the 
sewer or manhole during the cleaning operation. Mechanical equipment used for 
cleaning shall be equipped with an overload clutch to limit the risk of damage to the 
pipe.  The Contractor shall provide all equipment and personnel necessary to safely 
remove and extract silt and debris from the sewer through existing manhole access, 
load it onto trucks for disposal, and dispose of the silt and debris at approved sites.  
The Contractor shall trap all debris at the end manhole and properly dispose and haul 
away debris when cleaning pipe segments.  Cleaning is defined as follows: 
 
a. Removal of minor quantities of silt and debris form sewer lines and manholes 

preventing observation of sewer condition and defects; 
b. Removal and extraction of silt, debris, and obstructions from the sewer lines and 

manholes which actually prevent entry and use of CCTV equipment, or the 
completion of the sewer run and/or manned-entry inspection of sewers; and 

c. Removal of hard or semi-hard deposits, tuberculation, or other materials from 
sewer lines and manholes requiring the use of mechanically operated equipment 
which actually prevents entry and use of CCTV equipment, or the completion of 
the sewer run and/or manned-entry inspection of sewers.  Contractor shall provide 
and/or manage the equipment necessary for proper jetting, rodding, bucketing, 
brushing, root cutting, flushing and vacuum uplift or any other approved removal 
and extraction system necessary to remove and extract silt, debris and 
obstructions from the sewer which would otherwise preclude use of CCTV 
equipment and/or manned-entry inspection of the sewers. 

 
G. ADDITIONAL OBLIGATIONS OF THE CONTRACTOR:  The Contractor will 

schedule and perform all work in a manner that does not cause or contribute to incidence 
of overflows or spills of sewage from the sewer system.  In the event that the 
Contractor’s work activities contribute to overflows or spills, the Contractor shall 
immediately take appropriate action to contain and stop the overflow, clean up the 
spillage, disinfect the area affected by the spill, and notify the designated representative 
in a timely manner.  Contractor will indemnify and hold harmless the County for any 
fines or third-party claims for personal or real property damage arising out of a spill or 
overflow that is fully or partially the responsibility of the Contractor, including the legal, 
engineering, and administrative expenses of the County in defending such fines and 
claims.  
 
The Contractor shall be responsible for any fines levied by others, reimbursement of any 
agency incurred costs, damage, cleanup, restoration of flow, and any disruption of service 
costs to customers as a result of the Contractor’s work.  This is in addition to any and all 
costs incurred by the customer.  The Contractor shall respect the rights of property 
owners, and not enter upon private property without obtaining permission from the owner 
of the property.  For manholes located in easements of private property, the Contractor 
shall provide the resident with 24-hour advanced notice for easement access prior to 
entering the property, unless the resident provides immediate permission. 
 



 

FN 16-0094 Page 12 of 16 

H. ACCEPTANCE: Acceptance of internal sewer main television inspection shall be made 
upon the successful completion of the survey and shall be to the satisfaction of the 
County. 

 
I. CLEANUP:  After the survey process has been completed the Contractor shall cleanup 

the entire project area and return the ground cover to its origin al condition. The 
contractor shall dispose of all excess material and debris at a site approved by Moore 
County Public Utilities. 

 
J. WATER USE:  County shall provide water for any needed cleaning of sewer system 

during survey process at no charge. County will install hydrant meter at contractor 
specified location. Backflow prevention is the responsibility of the Contractor and shall 
be approved by the County. 
 

K. PERMITS:  The Contractor shall obtain all permits required by the local jurisdiction to 
perform the Services under this Contract. 

 
L. CERTIFICATIONS:  The Contractor will ensure that all CCTV operators responsible for 

direct reporting of sewer condition are certified by the National Association of Sewer 
Service Companies (NASSCO), Pipeline Assessment and Certification Program (PACP) 
and Manhole Assessment and Certification Program (MACP), and that they have a 
minimum of three years experience in surveying, processing, and interpretating data of 
CCTV surveys and inspections.  All work performed by the Contractor will be to 
NASSCO and PACP standards. 
 

M. OSHA:  It is the Contractor’s responsibility to comply with all applicable OSHA 
regulations and to submit written documentation that all workers have received the 
training necessary under these regulations. 
 

N. INSURANCE:  The Contractor, in addition to the insurance requirements within the main 
body of the Contract, will maintain the following minimum insurance coverage: 
 
1. General Liability in the amount of $2,000,000.00; 
2. Auto Liability in the amount of $2,000,000.00; and 
3. Umbrella Coverage in the amount of $5,000,000.00. 

 
O. EMERGENCY:  In the event of any Contractor-related overflow or interruption/backup 

of customer service, the Contractor shall contain and eliminate the overflow and shall 
immediately notify the County’s Department of Public Works at (910) 947-6315. 
 

P. FINAL INSPECTION:  Acceptance of Interceptor Sewer Cleaning and Inspection shall 
be made upon demonstration, through the television Inspection and logs, that the lines 
have been thoroughly cleaned and Inspected. 

 



 

FN 16-0094 Page 13 of 16 

Q. PAYMENT:  Payment for items included in this section shall be paid for based on the 
unit price indicated in the Cost Proposal Form.  Distance is based on measurement from 
centerline of manhole to centerline of manhole. 
 
Payment will be based on the rates in the following table: 

 
ITEM QUANTITY UNIT  PRICE/UNIT TOTAL 

18” CCTV Inspection 1,000 LF 2.50 $2,500.00 
24” CCTV Inspection 1,000 LF 3.00 $3,000.00 
30” CCTV Inspection 1,290 LF 3.50 $4,515.00 
36” CCTV Inspection 2,790 LF 4.25 $11,857.50 
42” CCTV Inspection 6,190 LF 5.00 $30,950.00 
Manhole Inspection 26 EA 25.00 $650.00 
Manhole Locating 5 EA 75.00 $375.00 
18” Main Cleaning (if needed) 300 LF 3.00 $900.00 
24” Main Cleaning (if needed) 300 LF 3.00 $900.00 
30” Main Cleaning (if needed) 380 LF 4.00 $1,520.00 
36” Main Cleaning (if needed) 840 LF 4.00 $3,360.00 
42” Main Cleaning (if needed) 1,800 LF 4.00 $7,200.00 
Manhole Cleaning (if needed) 10 EA 75.00 $750.00 

TOTAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $68,477.50 



ATTACHMENT 2 

FN 16-0094 

Maps Depicting Interceptor Inspection and Cleaning Project 

 

[See the following two pages.] 



 

FN 16-0094 Page 15 of 16 

 



 

FN 16-0094 Page 16 of 16 

 



  Agenda Item:   
         Meeting Date:  4/5/2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO THE MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:  
       
FROM: Laura Williams, Clerk on behalf of Chairman Picerno 
  
DATE: 4/5/2016 
  
SUBJECT: Consideration of Rescheduling of May 17, 2016 Regular Meeting 
 
PRESENTER:  Chairman Picerno 
 
 
 
REQUEST: 
 
The Chairman requests the Board consider rescheduling its Tuesday, May 17, 2016 regular meeting 
to Thursday, May 19, 2016. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Chairman has a scheduling conflict with the May 17, 2016 regular meeting.  This is the meeting 
for which the FY 17 budget public hearing is planned.  The Chairman requests the Board consider 
changing the meeting date to Thursday, May 19, 2016. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
 
If rescheduled, the Clerk will make notice to the public of the revised schedule. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
Consider rescheduling the May 17, 2016 regular meeting to May 19, 2016. 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.G.



  Agenda Item:   
         Meeting Date:  4/5/2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO THE MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:  
       
FROM: Laura Williams, Clerk  
  
DATE: 4/5/2016 
  
SUBJECT: Appointments / Nursing and Adult Care Home Community Advisory Committee 
 
 
 
REQUEST: 
 
Reappoint three members and appoint two new members to the Nursing and Adult Care Home 
Community Advisory Committee. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The current terms of service for CAC members Mary Meindl, Jane Robinson, and Leah Brennan 
expire this month, and each is willing and recommended to serve an additional term.  Also, the 
Committee is recruiting new members and has recommended the appointments of Lesa Riddle and 
Sandra Nusbaum. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
 
Clerk will make notification of appointments and update record. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
Make a motion to reappoint Mary Meindl, Jane Robinson, and Leah Brennan to the Nursing and 
Adult Care Home Community Advisory Committee for three-year terms expiring April 30, 2019, and 
to appoint Lesa Riddle and Sandra Nusbaum to the Committee for initial one-year terms expiring 
April 30, 2017. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
New Member Applications 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
IX.A.







  Agenda Item:   
         Meeting Date:  4/5/2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO THE MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:  
       
FROM: Laura Williams, Clerk  
  
DATE: 4/5/2016 
  
SUBJECT: Appointments / RSVP Advisory Council 
 
 
 
REQUEST: 
 
Reappoint member to the RSVP Advisory Council. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
RSVP Advisory Council member Bruce Robson’s term expired January 31, 2016 and Mr. Robson is 
available and recommended to serve and additional term. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
 
Clerk will make notification of appointment and update record. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
Make a motion to reappoint Bruce Robson to the RSVP Advisory Council for a three-year term 
expiring January 31, 2019. 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
IX.B.



  Agenda Item:   
         Meeting Date:  4/5/2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO THE MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:  
       
FROM: Laura Williams, Clerk  
  
DATE: 4/5/2016 
  
SUBJECT: Appointments / Board of Health 
 
 
 
REQUEST: 
 
Reappoint member to the Board of Health. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Mr. Max Muse’s term of service in the nurse position on the Board of Health expires this month.  Mr. 
Muse is willing to serve an additional term. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
 
Clerk will make notification of appointment and update record. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
Make a motion to reappoint Max Muse to the nurse position on the Board of Health for a three-year 
term expiring April 30, 2019. 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
IX.C.


	AGENDA
	III.A. CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION
	III.B. PUBLIC HEALTH MONTH
	V.A. 3/15/16 MINUTES
	V.B. BUDGET AMENDMENTS
	VI.A. CALL TO: CUD FOR SOLAR
	VIII.A. REJECT BIDS FOR ISP
	VIII.B. GLOBE COMMUNICATIONS
	VIII.C. REFUNDING BOND
	VIII.D. TERRY'S PLUMBING CO#5
	VIII.E. MIDLAND RD GRANT CLOSEOUT
	VIII.F. INTERCEPTOR PROJECT
	VIII.G. MTG RESCHEDULING
	IX.A. APPTS/NURSING CAC
	IX.B. APPTS/RSVP
	IX.C. APPTS/HEALTH



